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Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

On October 13, 2022, VAALCO Energy, Inc. (“VAALCO”) and VAALCO Energy Canada ULC (“AcquireCo”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of VAALCO,
completed the previously announced business combination with TransGlobe Energy Corporation (“TransGlobe”) whereby AcquireCo acquired all of the issued and
outstanding TransGlobe common shares (the “Arrangement”) and TransGlobe became a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of AcquireCo and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of VAALCO, pursuant to an arrangement agreement entered into by VAALCO, AcquireCo and TransGlobe on July 13, 2022 (the “Arrangement Agreement”).

At the effective time of the Arrangement, each common share of TransGlobe issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Arrangement (the
“TransGlobe common shares”) was converted into the right to receive 0.6727 (the “exchange ratio”) of a share of common stock, par value $0.10 per share, of VAALCO
(“VAALCO common stock,” and each share of VAALCO common stock, a “VAALCO share”). The total number of VAALCO shares issued to TransGlobe’s shareholders
was approximately 49.3 million.

Pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement, at the effective time of the Arrangement, each TransGlobe option issued under TransGlobe’s 2016 option plan, was deemed
fully and unconditionally vested and exercisable and surrendered and transferred to TransGlobe for cancellation in exchange for the right to a cash payment from TransGlobe
equal to the amount (if any) by which (x) the product of the Closing VWAP (as defined below) multiplied by the exchange ratio exceeded (y) the exercise price thereof. The
“Closing VWAP” means the volume weighted average price of VAALCO common stock on the New York Stock Exchange, rounded to four decimal places, and determined
without regard to after-hours trading or any other trading outside of the regular trading session trading hours, for the five consecutive trading days ending on the third
complete trading day prior to (and excluding) the effective date, as reported by Bloomberg.

Pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement: each (i) deferred share unit (“DSU”) issued under TransGlobe’s 2014 DSU plan, held by persons other than the three
directors of TransGlobe who were appointed to the board of directors of VAALCO (the “Board”) namely David Cook, Edward LaFehr and Timothy Marchant, (ii)
performance share unit (“PSU”) issued under TransGlobe’s 2014 PSU plan, as amended, held by TransGlobe’s departing employees, and (iii) restricted share unit (“RSU”)
issued under TransGlobe’s 2014 RSU plan, as amended, held by TransGlobe’s departing employees was deemed fully and unconditionally vested (in the case of PSUs, at a
vesting percentage of 200% for PSUs granted in 2020 or 2021 and at a vesting percentage of 64.4% for PSUs granted in 2022, in each case, as determined by the TransGlobe
board of directors) and surrendered and transferred to TransGlobe for cancellation in exchange for the right to a cash payment from TransGlobe equal to the product of the
Closing VWAP multiplied by the exchange ratio. All DSUs, PSUs and RSUs not described in the preceding sentence that were outstanding immediately prior to the effective
time of the Arrangement remain outstanding and the terms of such DSUs, PSUs and RSUs continue to be governed by the applicable plan, provided that each such applicable
plan has been amended so as to substitute for TransGlobe common shares underlying such DSUs, PSUs and RSUs, a number of VAALCO shares (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) in an amount equal to (a) the number of TransGlobe common shares underlying such DSUs, PSUs or RSUs, multiplied by (b) the exchange ratio. For
the PSUs that will remain outstanding following the effective time of the Arrangement as described in the immediately preceding sentence, the applicable vesting percentage
was determined by the TransGlobe board of directors to be 200% for PSUs granted in 2020 and 2021; and 64.4% for PSUs granted in 2022.

Additionally, prior to the effective time of the Arrangement, TransGlobe repaid in full all outstanding obligations and liabilities owned under TransGlobe’s credit
facility with ATB Financial, representing approximately C$4.1 million.

The description of the Arrangement set forth above does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Arrangement Agreement,
which was filed as Exhibit 2.1 to VAALCO’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on July 14, 2022, which is
incorporated by reference into this Item 2.01. The Arrangement Agreement has been included as an exhibit hereto solely to provide investors and securityholders with
information regarding its terms. It is not intended to be a source of financial, business or operational information about the parties. The representations, warranties and
covenants contained in the Arrangement Agreement were made only for purposes of that agreement and as of specific dates, were solely for the benefit of the parties to the
Arrangement Agreement, may be subject to limitations agreed upon by the parties, including being qualified by confidential disclosures made for the purposes of allocating
contractual risk between the parties to the Arrangement Agreement instead of establishing these matters as facts and may be subject to standards of materiality applicable to
the parties that differ from those applicable to investors. Investors and securityholders should not rely on the representations, warranties and covenants or any descriptions
thereof as characterizations of the actual state of facts or condition of the parties. Moreover, information concerning the subject matter of the representations and warranties
may change after the date of the Arrangement Agreement, which subsequent information may or may not be fully reflected in VAALCO’s public reports. The Arrangement
Agreement should not be read alone, but should instead be read in conjunction with the other information regarding the parties that is or will be contained in, or incorporated
by reference into, the documents that VAALCO files or has filed with the SEC.
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Item 5.02 Departure of Directors or Certain Officers; Election of Directors; Appointment of Certain Officers; Compensatory Arrangements of Certain Officers.

The information set forth under Item 2.01 of this Current Report on Form 8-K is incorporated by reference into this Item 5.02.

In accordance with the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, effective as of the effective time of the Arrangement, the Board approved an increase in the size of the
Board from four to seven directorships and appointed three of the members of TransGlobe’s existing board of directors, namely: David Cook, Edward LaFehr and Timothy
Marchant, to serve as directors of VAALCO and to hold office for a term expiring at the next annual meeting of stockholders of VAALCO and until their successors are duly
elected and shall qualify, unless sooner displaced.

Effective upon joining the Board, Messrs. Cook, LaFehr and Marchant will become eligible to receive the standard compensation provided by VAALCO to its other
non-employee directors, as most recently disclosed in VAALCO’s proxy statement for its 2022 annual meeting of stockholders. There are no family relationships between
Messrs. Cook, LaFehr and Marchant and any other director or executive officer of VAALCO and VAALCO is not aware of any transaction or proposed transaction required
to be disclosed pursuant to Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC.

Item 5.03 Amendment to Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws; Change in Fiscal Year.

On October 13, 2022, VAALCO’s restated certificate of incorporation was amended in connection with the Arrangement and in accordance with the terms of the
Arrangement Agreement. VAALCO amended its restated certificate of incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of VAALCO common stock from
100,000,000 shares to 160,000,000 shares, such share authorization having been approved at VAALCO’s special meeting of stockholders held on September 29, 2022.

The foregoing summary of the certificate of amendment to the restated certificate of incorporation does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the certificate of amendment to the restated certificate of incorporation, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 3.1 hereto and is incorporated by reference into this
Item 5.03.

Item 7.01 Regulation FD Disclosure.

VAALCO issued an announcement announcing the completion of the Arrangement on October 14, 2022. A copy of the announcement is attached as Exhibit 99.1
and is incorporated into this Item 7.01 by reference.

The information in this Item 7.01, including Exhibit 99.1 attached hereto, is being furnished and shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section. The information in this Item 7.01 shall not be incorporated by reference
into any registration statement or other document pursuant to the Securities Act, except as otherwise stated in such filings.
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Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired.
   

TransGlobe’s audited consolidated financial statements as of and for each of the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 and notes related thereto and the
related report of BDO Canada LLP, TransGlobe’s independent registered public accounting firm, are attached as Exhibit 99.2 hereto and are incorporated herein
by reference.

TransGlobe’s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for each of the six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 and notes related
thereto are attached as Exhibit 99.3 hereto and are incorporated herein by reference.

Disclosures concerning TransGlobe’s oil and gas producing activities for each of the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 will be filed by amendment to this
Current Report on Form 8-K no later than 71 days after the date on which this Current Report on Form 8-K is required to be filed pursuant to the instructions on
Item 2.01 of Form 8-K.

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.

Not applicable. The pro forma financial statements required by Article 11 of Regulation S-X were included under the “Unaudited Pro Forma Combined
Financial Information” section of the definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed by VAALCO with the SEC on August 30, 2022 and pursuant to General
Instruction B.3 of Form 8-K are not included herein.

(d) Exhibits.

Exhibit
No. Description
  
2.1 Arrangement Agreement, dated as of July 13, 2022, by and among VAALCO, AcquireCo and TransGlobe. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to

VAALCO’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 14, 2022.
3.1 Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of VAALCO, dated October 13, 2022.
23.1 Consent of BDO Canada LLP with respect to the specified financial statements of TransGlobe.
99.1 Announcement, dated October 14, 2022.
99.2 The historical audited consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules of TransGlobe as of and for each of the years ended December 31,

2021 and 2020, the notes related thereto and the related reports of BDO Canada, LLP, TransGlobe’s independent registered public accounting firm.
99.3 The historical unaudited consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules of TransGlobe as of and for each of the three and six months ended

June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the notes related thereto.
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SIGNATURE
​

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.

VAALCO Energy, Inc.
(Registrant)

Date: October 14, 2022  
By: /s/ Jason Doornik
Name: Jason Doornik
Title: Chief Accounting Officer and Controller



Exhibit 3.1

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
TO RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF
VAALCO ENERGY, INC.

Pursuant to Section 242 of the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware

VAALCO Energy, Inc., a Delaware corporation (hereinafter called the “Corporation”), does hereby certify as follows:

FIRST: That the Restated Certificate of Incorporation was filed on September 24, 1997 with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, as further amended by
amendments filed on June 25, 1998 and May 7, 2014.

SECOND: The amendment effected hereby was duly authorized by the Corporation’s Board of Directors and stockholders in accordance with the provisions of
Section 242 of the DGCL and shall be executed, acknowledged and filed in accordance with Section 103 of the DGCL.

THIRD: That the first paragraph of Article Four of the Corporation’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, is hereby amended to read in its entirety as
set forth below:

“The aggregate number  of  shares  which  the  Corporation  has  authority  to  issue  is  160,500,000 of  which 160,000,000 shares shall be a class designated as
Common Stock with a par value of $.10 per share, and 500,000 shares shall be a class designated as Preferred Stock with a par value of $25.00 per share. The Board of
Directors is authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by law and the provisions of this Article Four, to provide for the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock in series, and,
by filing a certificate pursuant to the applicable law of the State of Delaware, to establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each such series, and to fix
the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each series and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate to be duly executed in its corporate name effective the 13th day of October, 2022.

 VAALCO Energy, Inc.
  
  
 /s/ Ronald Y. Bain
 Name: Ronald Y. Bain
 Title: Chief Financial Officer
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Tel: 403 266 5608
Fax: 403 233 7833
www.bdo.ca
 

BDO Canada LLP
903 – 8 th Avenue SW, Suite 620
Calgary AB T2P 0P7
Canada

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 
TransGlobe Energy Corporation
Calgary, Alberta
 
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-261934) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-257028, 333-239424, 333-218824
and 333-197180) of VAALCO Energy, Inc. of our reports dated March 17, 2022, relating to the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020 and the effectiveness of TransGlobe Energy Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, which appear in VAALCO’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 14, 2022.
 
/s/ BDO Canada, LLP
Calgary, Alberta
 
October 14, 2022
 
BDO Canada, LLP, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.



Exhibit 99.1

 
VAALCO ENERGY ANNOUNCES THE CLOSING OF THE STRATEGIC BUSINESS COMBINATION WITH TRANSGLOBE ENERGY

 
HOUSTON – October 14, 2022 – VAALCO Energy, Inc. (NYSE: “EGY”; LSE: “EGY”) ("VAALCO" or the "Company") announced the closing of the strategic
combination (the “Arrangement”) of VAALCO and TransGlobe Energy Corporation (“TransGlobe”).  As previously disclosed, the combined Company will now trade on the
NYSE and LSE under the ticker symbol EGY.  The combined Company is a leading African-focused operator with a strong production and reserve base, a diverse portfolio
of assets in Gabon, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea and Canada, and significant future growth potential. In conjunction with the closing, VAALCO welcomes three new directors to
the Board, expanding the Board of Directors to seven directors.
 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS
 

• Enhanced stockholder returns with increased dividend, announced share buyback and potential for special distributions;
 

o Targeted annualized dividend of US$0.25 per share, or approximately US$27.3 million(1), for calendar 2023, nearly double VAALCO’s targeted
annualized dividend of US$0.13 per share prior to the combination;

 
o Planned share buyback program of up to US$30 million, the equivalent of US$0.27 per share(1), to be implemented following yesterday’s closing;

 
o Potential to further enhance stockholder distributions through returning excess cash via special distributions;

 
• Boosts size and scale through material growth in proved reserves and production volumes;

 
• Further enhances VAALCO’s balance sheet with an increased, robust cash position and no net debt;

 
• Reduces VAALCO’s overall risk profile through geographic diversification and multiple sources of production;

 
• Increases optionality with expanded inventory of high-quality, multi-year investment options;

 
• Potential to capture US$30 to US$50 million in synergistic cost savings over the next seven years as a result of the combination that can meaningfully improve

margins and enhance future cash flow generation;
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• Immediately accretive to key metrics and significantly increases future Adjusted EBITDAX(2) generation potential;
 

• Allows for improved public market valuation multiples based on VAALCO’s significantly enhanced scale and profile post-closing; and
 

• Expands the Board of Directors to seven members with the addition of David Cook, Edward Lafehr and Timothy Marchant.
 

(1)          Amount calculated based on VAALCO’s approximately 109.1 million issued and outstanding shares of common stock, par value $0.10 per share, as of October
13, 2022.

 
(2)          Adjusted EBITDAX is a Non-GAAP financial measure.

 
George Maxwell, VAALCO’s Chief Executive Officer commented, “We are excited to complete this transformational transaction and appreciate the strong support we
received from our now unified set of stockholders.  The combination is meaningful because it builds a business of scale with a stronger balance sheet and a more diversified
baseline of production that will underpin the combined Company’s opportunities for success.  There is significant inherent value within the combined portfolio, which should
allow us to generate meaningful cash flow to fund increased stockholder dividends, share buybacks and potential supplemental stockholder returns at a rate that would not
have been achievable by either VAALCO or TransGlobe on a standalone basis.
 
We are eager to begin this new chapter in VAALCO’s journey, with three new Board members to help guide our strategy in the future. On behalf of the Board, I would like to
welcome David, Edward and Timothy. We believe that their significant experience in the energy industry will help guide VAALCO and we look forward to their unique
perspectives on our expanded Board. We plan to report third quarter results for VAALCO separately, and will provide additional insight into our plans for 2023 as we better
assess and evaluate the attractive inventory of opportunities we have across our diversified portfolio of assets.”
 
David Cook was appointed to TransGlobe’s Board of Directors in August 2014 and was elected Chairman of the TransGlobe Board in May 2019. Previously, Mr. Cook was
the Chief Executive Officer of Noreco (Norwegian Energy Company). Prior to Noreco, Mr. Cook was the Head of Strategy at INEOS Oil & Gas and, prior thereto, the Chief
Executive Officer of INEOS DeNoS. Prior to INEOS, Mr. Cook was the Chief Executive Officer of the Danish upstream company DONG Oil and Gas, owned by what is
today Orsted. He possesses more than 30 years of experience in the energy business having held senior positions at Noreco, INEOS, DONG Energy (now Orsted), the Abu
Dhabi National Energy Company PJSC (“TAQA”), BP, TNK-BP and Amoco. Mr. Cook has previously served on the Board of WesternZagros Ltd., in addition to previously
serving as a Director for three BP/Rosneft joint ventures. Mr. Cook holds a BSc in Geophysics and a PhD in Geological Sciences from Michigan State University and
currently resides in Houston, Texas.
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Edward LaFehr was appointed to TransGlobe’s Board of Directors in March 2019. Mr. LaFehr was the Chief Executive Officer of Baytex Energy Corporation, a mid-sized oil
and gas company based in Calgary, until his retirement in October 2022. Mr. LaFehr has 35 years of experience in the oil and gas industry working with Amoco, BP,
Talisman and TAQA, holding senior positions in North American, Europe and the Middle East regions. Prior to joining Baytex, he was President of TAQA's North American
oil and gas business based in Calgary and subsequently Chief Operating Officer for TAQA, globally. Prior to this, he served as Senior Vice President for Talisman Energy in
Calgary. From 2009 to 2011 Mr. LaFehr was Managing Director of Pharaonic Petroleum Company in Cairo, Egypt. In this capacity he served on BP Egypt's executive team
and represented BP's interests on the Board of Directors of Pharaonic and ENI's Petrobel JV companies with the Egyptian Government. Mr. LaFehr holds Masters degrees in
geophysics and mineral economics from Stanford University and the Colorado School of Mines, respectively.
 
Dr. Timothy Marchant was appointed to TranGlobe’s Board of Directors in March 2020. Dr. Marchant has 40 years of oil and gas industry experience in Canada and
international locations, with extensive experience in exploration, foreign growth strategies, sustainability and international operations. Currently, he is the Adjunct Professor
of Strategy and Energy Geopolitics at the Haskayne School of Business, University of Calgary where he teaches energy, corporate social responsibility and sustainability
strategies; he also lectures on board environment, social and governance strategies for the Institute of Corporate Directors Education Program. Dr. Marchant has served in a
variety of senior executive positions with British Petroleum and Amoco in Egypt, Saudi Arabia, Abu Dhabi and Kuwait. Prior to his international assignments, he spent 17
years with Amoco Canada. Dr. Marchant has a Ph.D. in Geology from Trinity College, University of Dublin, Ireland. He completed the Executive Program at the Ivey School
of Business, University of Western Ontario in 1994 and the Institute of Corporate Directors Education Program in 2011.
 
Canadian Early Warning Reporting
 
This press release is being issued, in part, pursuant to National Instrument 62-103 – The Early Warning System and Related Take-Over Bid and Insider Reporting Issues
which requires a report to be filed under TransGlobe’s profile on SEDAR (sedar.com) containing additional information respecting the matters described herein. In order to
obtain a copy of the early warning report, please contact Jason Doornik, Chief Accounting Officer and Controller at jdoornik@vaalco.com, or 713-623-0801.
 
Prior to the Arrangement, neither VAALCO nor VAALCO Energy Canada ULC (“ AcquireCo”) owned any common shares of TransGlobe (the “TransGlobe Shares”).
Pursuant to the Arrangement, AcquireCo acquired 73,296,764 TransGlobe Shares, representing 100% of the issued and outstanding TransGlobe Shares and accordingly,
following completion of the Arrangement, VAALCO beneficially owns 100% of the issued and outstanding TransGlobe Shares.
 
Under the terms of the Arrangement, the shareholders of TransGlobe (the “TransGlobe Shareholders”) received, for each TransGlobe Share, 0.6727 of a share of VAALCO
common stock, par value US$0.10 per share, of VAALCO (each, a “ VAALCO Share”). No fractional shares of VAALCO Shares were issued in the Arrangement, and
TransGlobe’s registered shareholders received cash in lieu of any fractional shares of VAALCO Shares. In the aggregate, TransGlobe Shareholders received approximately
49.3 million VAALCO Shares.
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The purpose of the Arrangement was to permit AcquireCo to acquire all of the issued and outstanding TransGlobe Shares such that TransGlobe will be an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of VAALCO. TransGlobe Shares will be delisted from the Toronto Stock Exchange, the Nasdaq Capital Market and the AIM market operated by the
London Stock Exchange plc as promptly as practicable following the effective date of the Arrangement and TransGlobe will cease to be a reporting issuer in the applicable
jurisdictions.
 
AcquireCo was incorporated under the laws of Alberta and is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of VAALCO. The address of the registered office of AcquireCo is 2700,
255-6 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1N2 and VAALCO’s head office is located at 9800 Richmond Avenue, Suite 700, Houston, TX 77042.
 
Advisors
 
VAALCO has retained Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated as sole financial advisor, and Mayer Brown International LLP, Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP, and Al
Kamel Law Firm as legal counsel.
 
In connection with the transaction, TransGlobe retained Evercore Partners International LLP as the sole financial advisor, and Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLP, Paul, Weiss,
Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP, Bird & Bird LLP and Sharkawy & Sarhan as legal counsel.
 
About VAALCO
 
VAALCO, founded in 1985 and incorporated under the laws of Delaware, is a Houston, USA based, independent energy company with production, development and
exploration assets in Africa and Canada.
 
Following its business combination with TransGlobe in October 2022, VAALCO owns a diverse portfolio of operated production, development and exploration assets across
Gabon, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea and Canada.
 
For Further Information
 
VAALCO Investor Contact  
  
Al Petrie
Chris Delange

 +1 713 543 3422  

 
VAALCO Financial Advisor
 

 

Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated
Callum Stewart
Simon Mensley

+44 20 7710 7600  

   
VAALCO Financial PR
 

  

Buchanan
Ben Romney
Jon Krinks
 

+44 20 7466 5000
 

VAALCO@buchanan.uk.com
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Forward Looking Statements
 
 This document includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this document that address activities, events, plans, expectations,
objectives or developments that VAALCO expects, believes or anticipates will or may occur in the future are forward-looking statements.  These statements may include
statements related to the expected operating performance of VAALCO, estimates of future cost reductions, synergies, including pre-tax synergies and efficiencies,
expectations regarding VAALCO’s ability to effectively integrate assets and properties it acquired as a result of the arrangement with TransGlobe into VAALCO’s operations,
expectations regarding future dividends and returns to stockholders including share buybacks, expectations of future equity and enterprise value,  the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, including the recent sharp decline in the global demand for and resulting global oversupply of crude oil and the resulting steep decline in oil prices, production
quotas imposed by Gabon, disruptions in global supply chains, quarantines of our workforce or workforce reductions and other matters related to the pandemic, well results,
wells anticipated to be drilled and placed on production, future levels of drilling and operational activity and associated expectations, the implementation of the Company’s
business plans and strategy, prospect evaluations, prospective resources and reserve growth, its activities in Equatorial Guinea, expected sources of and potential difficulties in
obtaining future capital funding and future liquidity, its ability to restore production in non-producing wells, its ability to find a replacement for the FPSO or to renew the
FPSO charter, future operating losses, future changes in crude oil and natural gas prices, future strategic alternatives, future and pending acquisitions, capital expenditures,
future drilling plans, acquisition and interpretation of seismic data and costs thereof, negotiations with governments and third parties, timing of the settlement of Gabon
income taxes, and expectations regarding processing facilities, production, sales and financial projections.  Dividends of VAALCO beyond the third quarter 2022 have not yet
been approved or declared by the Board of Directors of VAALCO. Expectations with respect to future dividends, annualized dividends or other returns to stockholders,
including share buybacks, are forward-looking statements. Investors are cautioned that such statements with respect to future dividends and share buybacks are non-binding.
The declaration and payment of future dividends or the terms of any share buybacks remain at the discretion of the Board of Directors of VAALCO and will be determined
based on VAALCO’s financial results, balance sheet strength, cash and liquidity requirements, future prospects, crude oil and natural gas prices, and other factors deemed
relevant by the Board of Directors of VAALCO. The Board of Directors of VAALCO reserves all powers related to the declaration and payment of dividends and terms of
any share buybacks. Consequently, in determining the dividend to be declared and paid on VAALCO common stock or the terms of any share buyback, the Board of
Directors of VAALCO may revise or terminate such payment level or such terms at any time without prior notice.  These statements are based on assumptions made by
VAALCO based on its experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors it believes are appropriate in the
circumstances.  Such statements are subject to a number of assumptions, risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond VAALCO’s control.  These risks include, but are
not limited to, the tax treatment of the arrangement with TransGlobe in the United States and Canada, crude oil and natural gas price volatility, the impact of production
quotas imposed by Gabon in response to production cuts agreed to as a member of OPEC, inflation, general economic conditions, the ability to attract capital or obtain debt
financing arrangements,; currency exchange rates and regulations,; actions by joint venture co-owners, the outbreak of COVID-19, the Company’s success in discovering,
developing and producing reserves, production and sales differences due to timing of liftings, decisions by future lenders, the risks associated with liquidity, lack of
availability of goods, services and capital, environmental risks, drilling risks, foreign regulatory and operational risks, and regulatory changes and other risks described (i)
under the caption “Risk Factors” in VAALCO’s 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on March 11, 2022, VAALCO’s Second Quarter Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on August 10, 2022 and definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on August 30, 2022; and (ii) in TransGlobe’s 2021
Annual Report on Form 40-F, filed with the SEC on March 17, 2022.
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Investors are cautioned that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and that actual results or developments may differ materially from those
projected in the forward-looking statements.  VAALCO disclaims any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events, or otherwise.
 
Inside Information
 
This announcement contains inside information as defined in Regulation (EU) No. 596/2014 on market abuse which is part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European
Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (“MAR”) and is made in accordance with the Company’s obligations under article 17 of MAR. The person responsible for arranging the release
of this announcement on behalf of VAALCO is Michael Silver, Corporate Secretary of VAALCO.
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EXHIBIT 99.2
 
 TRANSGLOBE ENERGY CORPORATION   TSX & AIM: TGL      NASDAQ: TGA 

 

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of TransGlobe Energy Corporation were prepared by management within acceptable limits of materiality and are in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. Management is responsible for ensuring that the financial and operating information presented
in this annual report is consistent with that shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the accounting policies as described in the notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Timely release of financial information sometimes necessitates the use of estimates when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized until future
periods. When necessary, such estimates are based on informed judgments made by management.

To ensure the integrity of the Consolidated Financial Statements, we carefully select and train qualified personnel. We also ensure our organizational structure provides appropriate
delegation of authority and division of responsibilities. Our policies and procedures are communicated throughout the organization and include a written Code of Conduct that applies to all
employees, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

BDO Canada LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm appointed by the shareholders, has conducted an examination of the corporate and accounting records in order to
express their opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Audit Committee, consisting of three independent directors, has met with representatives of BDO Canada LLP and
management in order to determine if management has fulfilled its responsibilities in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Board of Directors has approved the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Management has designed and maintains an appropriate system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded and financial records are properly
maintained to facilitate the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for reporting purposes. Management’s evaluation concluded that the internal controls over financial reporting
were effective as of December 31, 2021. 

The effectiveness of TransGlobe’s internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021 have been audited by BDO Canada LLP, the Company’s Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm, who also audited the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021.
 
Signed by:   

“Randy C. Neely”   “Edward D. Ok”

Randy C. Neely   Edward D. Ok
President & Chief Executive Officer   Vice President, Finance & Chief Financial Officer

March 17, 2022
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TransGlobe Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related
consolidated statements of earnings (loss) and comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2021, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period
ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (collectively “IFRS”).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in  Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013)  issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO”) and our report dated March 17, 2022 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures
that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that was communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved especially challenging,
subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of the critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we
are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

The impact of estimates of proved plus probable oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids reserves on petroleum and natural gas assets

As described in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has a Petroleum and natural gas assets of $173,804 (000’s) at December 31, 2021. Additionally, an
impairment reversal of $31,521 (000’s) was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2021. The process of estimating oil and gas reserves is complex and involves decisions and
assumptions in evaluating the available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data. The accuracy of the Company’s reserves estimates is a function of the quality and
quantity of available data, the interpretation of that data, the accuracy of various mandated economic assumptions, and the judgment of the management and 3 rd  party reserves engineers
preparing the estimate. The determination of the present value of the reserves estimates requires both management and the 3 rd  party reserves engineers to make significant estimations
and assumptions related to pricing, differentials, volume, operating costs, division of interest, taxes, future development costs, and discount rate. The Company’s oil and natural gas
reserves estimates directly impact (1) oil and natural gas properties, (2) depreciation, depletion, and amortization and (3) the assessment of impairment (reversal) of oil and natural gas
properties. As disclosed by management, any significant variance in these assumptions could materially affect the estimated quantities and present value of their reserves.

The cost of petroleum and natural gas assets comprise the purchase or construction costs, and any costs directly attributable to bring the asset into operation, including qualifying
exploration and evaluation (“E&E”) costs. Petroleum and natural gas assets are measured at cost less accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization, and accumulated impairment
losses.

We identified the impact of estimates of proved plus probable oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids reserves on petroleum and natural gas assets as a critical audit matter. Certain inputs
and assumptions required to estimate volumes and future net revenues of proved plus probable reserves, involve a high degree of subjectivity which could have a significant impact on the
measurement of depletion expense and impairment (reversal).
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Our audit procedures included the following, among others:
 
 •  We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of certain controls relating to the critical audit matter, including controls over the calculation of depletion expense and controls

over the estimation of the proved and probable reserves, including the reserve assumptions.
 

 •  We evaluated the independence, objectivity, and professional qualifications of the Company’s reserves engineers, made inquiries of those specialists regarding the process followed and
judgments made to estimate the Company’s proved plus probable reserves volumes, and read the reserves report prepared by the Company’s specialists;

 

 •  We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s key inputs and assumptions used to determine proved plus probable reserves volumes and other cash flow inputs and assumptions
including:

 
 ○  Internal communications to management and the Board of Directors.
 
 ○  Permits and approval for expenditures.
 
 ○  Agree significant inputs to source documentation where available.
 
 ○  Assess inputs for reasonableness based on review of corroborative evidence.
 
 ○  Applied analytical procedures to the reserves report forecasted production by comparing to historical actual results, and to the prior year reserves report.
 

 ○  Compared the estimated pricing differentials used in the reserves report to realized prices related to revenue transactions recorded in the current year and examined
contractual support for the pricing differentials.

 
 •  We evaluated management’s estimated future oil and natural gas prices by:
 
 ○  Understanding the methodology used by management for developing future prices and comparing the estimated prices to an independently determined range of prices.
 
 ○  Comparing management’s estimates to published forward pricing indices and third-party industry sources.
 
 •  Engaged our fair value specialist to review the appropriateness of discounts rates used in the calculations of recoverable amounts.

/s/ BDO Canada LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2020.

Calgary, Alberta

March 17, 2022
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited TransGlobe Energy Corporation’s (the “Company’s”) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in  Internal Control –
Integrated Framework (2013)  issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “COSO criteria”). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated statements of earnings (loss) and comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes and our report dated March 17, 2022 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ BDO Canada LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants

Calgary, Alberta

March 17, 2022
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars, except per share amounts)
 
     Years Ended December 31 
   Notes                              2021                              2020 

REVENUE            
Petroleum and natural gas sales, net of royalties  24     169,006   114,675 
Finance revenue  7    9   106 
Other revenue    6    32   641 

  

    169,047   115,422 
  

EXPENSES     
Production and operating  10,2 4   61,430   64,462 
Overlift    24     14,723    –  
Selling costs  8    3,921   2,111 
General and administrative    26    20,353   11,990 
Foreign exchange loss     47   24 
Finance costs  7    1,141   2,520 
Depletion, depreciation and amortization  13    25,434   31,049 
Asset retirement obligation accretion  1 4    207   259 
Loss (gain) on financial instruments  5    10,563   (6,621) 
Impairment (reversal) loss  12, 13   (31,521)   73,495 

  

    106,298   179,289 
  

Earnings (loss) before income taxes     62,749   (63,867) 

Income tax expense - current  11    22,411   13,530 
  

NET EARNINGS (LOSS)     40,338   (77,397) 
  

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)     
Currency translation adjustments     (62)   766 

  

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)     40,276   (76,631) 
  

Net earnings (loss) per share  21    
Basic     0.56   (1.07) 
Diluted     0.55   (1.07) 

  

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars)
 

   Notes  
As at

December 31, 2021  
As at

December 31, 2020 

ASSETS            
Current            

Cash      37,929   34,510 
Accounts receivable  5,9    12,217   9,996 
Prepaids and other     4,024   3,530 
Product inventory  10    -   5,828 

  

    54,170   53,864 

Non-Current     
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets  12    2,673   584 
Property and equipment     

Petroleum and natural gas assets  13    173,804   140,059 
Other  13    2,202   2,917 

Deferred taxes  11    6,246   3,723 
  

    239,095   201,147 
  

LIABILITIES     
Current     

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  1 6    26,112   20,176 
Current portion of share-based compensation liabilities  20     6,174   1,491 
Derivative commodity contracts  5    88   398 
Current portion of lease obligations  1 5    764   1,553 
Current portion of long-term debt  1 7    -   14,897 

  

    33,138   38,515 

Non-Current     
Long-term debt  1 7    3,040   6,567 
Asset retirement obligations  1 4    14,102   13,042 
Share-based compensation liabilities     20    3,959   544 
Lease obligations  1 5    36   461 
Deferred taxes  11    6,246   3,723 

  

    60,521   62,852 
  

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY     
Share capital  19    153,021   152,805 
Accumulated other comprehensive income     1,838   1,900 
Contributed surplus  2 0    24,896   25,109 
Deficit     (1,181)   (41,519) 

  

    178,574   138,295 
  

    239,095   201,147 
  

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 18)

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors

Signed by:
 
“Randy C. Neely”  “Steven Sinclair”

Randy C. Neely  Steven Sinclair
President & CEO
Director  

Audit Committee Chair
Director
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars)
 
     Years Ended December 31 
   Notes                              2021                              2020 

Share Capital     
  

Balance, beginning of year  19    152,805   152,805 
Stock options exercised  19    (340)   - 
Transfer from contributed surplus on exercise of options  19    556    -  

  

Balance, beginning and end of year     19    153,021    152,805 
  

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income     
Balance, beginning of year     1,900   1,134 
Currency translation adjustment     (62)   766 

  

Balance, end of year     1,838   1,900 
  

Contributed Surplus     
Balance, beginning of year     25,109   24,673 
Share-based compensation expense  2 0    343   436 
Transfer to share capital on exercise of options    20     (556 )   -  

  

Balance, end of year     24,896   25,109 
  

(Deficit) Retained Earnings     
Balance, beginning of year     (41,519)   35,878 
Net earnings (loss)     40,338   (77,397) 

  

Balance, end of year     (1,181)   (41,519) 
  

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars)
 
     Years Ended December 31 
   Notes                              2021                              2020 

OPERATING     
Net earnings (loss)     40,338   (77,397) 
Adjustments for:     

Depletion, depreciation and amortization  13    25,434   31,049 
Asset retirement obligation accretion  1 4    207   259 
Impairment (recovery) loss  12, 13   (31,521)   73,495 
Share-based compensation  2 0    9,267   857 
Finance costs  7    1,141   2,520 
Unrealized loss on financial instruments  5    88   180 
Unrealized loss (gain) on foreign currency translation     12   (62) 

Asset retirement obligations settled  1 4    (135)   (458) 
Changes in working capital  2 5    131   1,266 

  

Net cash generated by operating activities     44,962   31,709 
  

INVESTING     
Additions to intangible exploration and evaluation assets  12    (2,089)   (337) 
Additions to petroleum and natural gas assets  13    (24,636)   (6,726) 
Additions to other assets  13    (97)   (435) 
Changes in working capital  2 5    7,601   (3,544) 

  

Net cash used in investing activities     (19,221)   (11,042) 
  

FINANCING     
Issue of common shares  19    (340)   - 
Interest paid  7    (856)   (1,918) 
Increase in long-term debt  1 7    415   406 
Payments on lease obligations  1 5    (1,932)   (1,703) 
Repayments of long-term debt  1 7    (18,937)   (16,504) 
Changes in working capital  2 5    (365)   161 

  

Net cash used in financing activities     (22,015)   (19,558) 
  

Currency translation differences relating to cash     (307)   150 
  

NET INCREASE IN CASH      3,419   1,259 
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR     34,510   33,251 

  

CASH, END OF YEAR     37,929   34,510 
  

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

(All amounts expressed in U.S. Dollars, except as otherwise noted)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

TransGlobe Energy Corporation (“TransGlobe” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries are engaged in oil and natural gas exploration, development and production, and the acquisition of
oil and natural gas properties. The Company’s shares are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”), the London Stock Exchange’s Alternative Investment Market (“AIM”) and the
Capital Market of the NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASDAQ”). TransGlobe is incorporated in Alberta, Canada and the address of its principal place of business is Suite 900, 444 – 5 th

 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2P 2T8.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board. The accounting policies used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are described in Note 3  Significant Accounting Policies .

The Company prepared the Consolidated Financial Statements on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and liabilities in the normal course of business as
they become due. Accordingly, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for cash, derivative commodity contracts and share-based
compensation liabilities that have been measured at fair value. The method used to measure fair value is discussed further in Notes 3 and 5.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented and expressed in United States dollars (“US$”), unless otherwise noted. All references to $ are to United States dollars and
references to C$ are to Canadian dollars.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 1 6 , 2022.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all subsidiaries and periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of the Company and its wholly-owned, controlled subsidiaries. Control exists when the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity, it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns associated with its involvement in the entity, and it has the ability to use that
power to influence the amount of returns it is exposed to or has rights to. In assessing control, potential voting rights need to be considered. All subsidiaries of the Company are wholly-
owned by the parent company, TransGlobe Energy Corporation.

All intra-company transactions, balances, income and expenses, unrealized gains and losses are eliminated on consolidation.

Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in U.S. dollars. The Company’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar, and the functional currency of all subsidiaries is the U.S.
dollar. Foreign currency translations include the translation of foreign currency transactions and translation of the Canadian operations.

Foreign currency translations occur when translating transactions in foreign currencies to the applicable functional currency of TransGlobe Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries. Gains
and losses from foreign currency transactions are recorded as foreign exchange gains or losses. Foreign currency transaction translations occur as follows:
 
 •  Income and expenses are translated at the prevailing rates on the date of the transaction
 •  Non-monetary  assets or liabilities are carried at the prevailing rates on the date of the transaction
 •  Monetary items are translated at the prevailing rates at the balance sheet date

Translation gains and losses occur when translating the financial statements of  non-U.S.  functional currency operations to the U.S. dollar. These translation gains and losses are
recorded as currency translation adjustments and presented as other comprehensive income on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss).
Translations occur as follows:
 
 •  Income and expenses are translated at the date of the transaction
 •  Assets and liabilities are translated at the prevailing rates on the balance sheet date

Cash

Cash comprises cash on hand. As at December 31, 2021, all of the Company’s cash is on deposit with high credit-quality financial institutions.
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Financial instruments

Financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Measurement in subsequent periods depends on the classification of the financial instrument:
 
 •  Fair value through profit or loss - subsequently carried at fair value with changes recognized in net earnings (loss). Financial instruments under this classification include cash ,  and derivative

commodity contracts; and

 •  Amortized cost - subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Financial instruments under this classification include accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and long-term debt.

The Company enters into certain financial derivative contracts from time to time in order to reduce its exposure to market risks from fluctuations in commodity prices. These instruments
are not used for trading or speculative purposes. The Company does not designate financial derivative contracts as effective accounting hedges, and thus does not apply hedge
accounting, even though the Company considers all commodity contracts to be economic hedges. As a result, the Company’s policy is to classify all financial derivative contracts at fair
value through profit or loss and to record them on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair value with a corresponding gain or loss in net earnings (loss). Attributable transaction costs are
recognized in net earnings (loss) when incurred. The estimated fair value of all derivative instruments is based on quoted market prices and/or third-party market indications and
forecasts.

Embedded derivatives are derivatives embedded in a host contract. They are recorded separately from the host contract when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contract; when the terms of the embedded derivatives are the same as those of a freestanding derivative; and when the combined contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

Refer to Note 5 for the classification and measurement of these financial instruments.

Share capital

Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of common shares are recognized as a deduction from equity. Repurchase of the Company’s
own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract provides the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. A lease obligation is
recognized at the commencement of the lease term measured as the present value of the lease payments not already paid at that date. Interest expense is recognized on the lease
obligations using the effective interest rate method and net payments are applied against the lease obligation. At the commencement date, a corresponding  right-of-use  asset is
recognized at the amount of the lease obligation, adjusted for lease incentives received and initial direct costs. Depreciation is recognized on the  right-of-use  asset over the lease term.

Property and equipment and intangible exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation (“E&E”) costs related to each license/prospect are initially capitalized within “intangible exploration and evaluation assets”. Such E&E costs may include costs
of license acquisition, technical services and studies, seismic acquisition, exploration drilling and testing, directly attributable expenses, including remuneration of production personnel
and supervisory management, and the projected costs of retiring the assets (if any), but do not include  pre-licensing  costs incurred prior to having obtained the legal rights to explore an
area, which are expensed directly to net earnings (loss) as they are incurred and presented as exploration expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss) and
Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Intangible exploration and evaluation assets are not depleted. They are carried forward until technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource is determined, at
which point they are transferred to petroleum and natural gas (“PNG”) assets. The technical feasibility and commercial viability is considered to be determined when proved and/or
probable reserves are determined to exist or they can be empirically supported with actual production data or conclusive formation tests.

Petroleum and natural gas assets

PNG assets and other assets are  measured  at cost less accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization, and accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into operation, including qualifying E&E costs on reclassification from intangible
exploration and evaluation assets, and for qualifying assets, where applicable, borrowing costs. When significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items.

Gains and losses on disposal of items of property and equipment, including oil and natural gas interests, are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property and equipment and are recognized in net earnings (loss) immediately.

Subsequent costs

Costs incurred subsequent to the determination of technical feasibility and commercial viability and the costs of replacing parts of property and equipment are recognized as petroleum
properties or other assets only when they increase the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they relate. All other expenditures are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred. Such capitalized property and equipment generally
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represent costs incurred in developing proved and/or probable reserves and bringing in or enhancing production from such reserves, and are accumulated on a well, field or geotechnical
area basis, together with the discounted value of estimated future costs of asset retirement obligations.

When components of PNG assets are replaced, disposed of or no longer in use, the carrying amount is derecognized. The costs of the  day-to-day  servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in net earnings (loss) as incurred.

Depletion, depreciation and amortization

The depletion, depreciation and amortization of PNG assets and other assets are recognized in net earnings (loss).

The net carrying value of the PNG assets included in petroleum properties is depleted using the unit of production method by reference to the ratio of production to the related proved
plus probable reserves using estimated future prices and costs. Costs subject to depletion include estimated future development costs necessary to bring those reserves into production.
These estimates are reviewed by independent reserves engineers at least annually and determined in accordance with the standards set out in the Canadian Oil and Gas Evaluation
Handbook (the “ COGE Handbook “) and the reserves definitions contained in National Instrument  51-101   Standards of Disclosure of Oil and Gas Activities . Natural gas reserves and
production are converted at the energy equivalent of six thousand cubic feet to one barrel of oil.

Furniture and fixtures are depreciated at declining balance rates of 20% to 30%, whereas vehicles and leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.

Product inventory

Product inventory consists of the Company’s unsold Egypt entitlement crude oil barrels, valued at the lower of cost, using the  first-in,   first-out  method, or net realizable value. Cost
includes operating expenses and depletion associated with the entitlement crude oil barrels as determined on a concession by concession basis.

Overlift liability

Overlift refers to a situation where the Company lifts barrels in excess of its entitlement crude oil inventory at the time of sale. An overlift liability represents an obligation for the Company
to deliver the equivalent future entitlement production. Settlement of the overlift liability occurs when this entitlement production is delivered or when there is an agreement in place to
offset amounts owed from the counterparty. At the time of an overlift, the Company recognizes the revenue from the cargo lifting, with an equivalent cost recorded to an expense resulting
in no net earnings impact related to the overlifted barrels during the period.

Overlift liabilities are valued based on the Dated Brent oil price, less Gharib quality differential, at the balance sheet date. A gain/loss on overlifted oil volumes is recorded on the
difference between the original liability and the fair value of the liability at the balance sheet date. 

Impairment

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

TransGlobe applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses (“ECL”) prescribed by IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables carried at amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company measures the lifetime expected loss provision taking into consideration TransGlobe’s historical credit loss experience as well as forward-looking
information in order to establish loss rates. The amount recognized for ECL that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be
recognized is recognized in net earnings (loss).

Non-financial  assets

At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of the Company’s  non-financial  assets are reviewed to determine whether there is an indication of impairment, except for E&E assets,
which are reviewed when circumstances indicate impairment may exist. If there is an indication of impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and compared to its carrying
value.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the cash-generating unit). The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. The Company’s CGUs are not larger than a segment. In assessing both fair value less costs to sell and value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in net earnings (loss).

For PNG assets, fair value less costs to sell and value in use is generally computed by reference to the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from production of
proved plus probable reserves.

E&E assets are tested for impairment when they are transferred to petroleum properties and also if facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of E&E assets may exceed
the recoverable amount. Impairment indicators are evaluated at a CGU level. Indication of impairment includes:
 
 1. Expiry or impending expiry of lease with no expectation of renewal;
 2. Lack of budget or plans for substantive expenditures on further E&E;
 3. Cessation of E&E activities due to a lack of commercially viable discoveries; and
 4. Carrying amounts of E&E assets are unlikely to be recovered in full from a successful development project.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss may be reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depletion and depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which equity instruments are granted and is recognized as an expense
over the vesting period, which ends on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award. Fair value is determined by using the lattice-based trinomial option
pricing model. An estimated forfeiture rate is taken into consideration when assigning a fair value to options granted such that no expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately
vest.

At each financial reporting date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, which represents the extent to which the vesting period has expired and management’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The movement in cumulative expense since the previous financial reporting date is recognized in net earnings
(loss), with a corresponding entry in contributed surplus in equity.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified or a new award is designated as replacing a canceled or settled award, the cost based on the original award terms continues to
be recognized over the remainder of the new vesting period for the incremental fair value of any modification, based on the difference between the fair value of the original award and the
fair value of the modified award, both as measured on the date of the modification. No reduction is recognized if this difference is negative.

Cash-settled transactions

The expense related to the share units granted under these plans is measured at fair value based on the estimated grant date share price fair value of the respective awards, net of
estimated forfeitures. The expense is recognized over the vesting period, with a corresponding liability recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The grant date fair value of cash-settled units granted to employees is recognized as compensation expense within general and administrative expenses, with a corresponding increase
in share-based compensation liabilities over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the units. The amount recognized as an expense over the related service
period is adjusted to reflect the actual number of units that eventually vest and considers both  non-market  and market conditions. Until the liability is ultimately settled, it is  re-measured
 at each reporting date with changes to fair value recognized in net earnings (loss).

Provisions and asset retirement obligations

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

The Company provides for asset retirement obligations on all of its Canadian operations based on current legislation and industry operating practices. The estimated present value of the
asset retirement obligation is recorded as a long-term liability, with a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related asset. This increase is depleted with the related
depletion unit and is allocated to a CGU for impairment testing. The liability is increased each reporting period to reflect the passage of time with a corresponding charge to accretion
expense. The asset retirement obligation can also increase or decrease due to changes in the estimated timing of cash flows, changes in the discount rate and/or changes in the original
estimated undiscounted costs. Increases or decreases in the obligation will result in a corresponding change in the carrying amount of the related asset. Actual costs incurred upon
settlement of the asset retirement obligation are charged against the asset retirement obligation to the extent of the liability recorded. Asset retirement obligations are measured at each
reporting period to reflect the discount rates in effect at that time. On an annual basis, the Company reviews its estimates of the expected costs to reclaim the net interest in its wells and
facilities. Resulting changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

In accordance with all of the Company’s Production Sharing Agreements and Production Sharing Concessions (collectively defined as “PSCs”), the Company does not, at any time, hold
title to the lands on which it operates. In Egypt, under model concession agreements and the Fuel Material Law, liabilities in respect of decommissioning movable and immovable assets
(other than wells) passes to the Egyptian Government through the transfer of ownership from the contractor to the government under the cost recovery process.

In relation to petroleum wells, under good oilfield practices, the contractor is responsible for decommissioning  non-producing  wells under a decommissioning plan approved by the
Egyptian General Petroleum  Corporation (“EGPC”)  during the life of the concession agreement. If EGPC agrees that a producing well is not economic, then the contractor will be
responsible for decommissioning the well under an EGPC approved decommissioning plan. EGPC, at its own discretion, may not require a well to be decommissioned if it wants to
preserve the ability to use the well for other purposes. In accordance with the respective concession agreements, expenses approved by EGPC are recoverable through the cost
recovery mechanism.

As at December 31, 2021 there is no ARO associated with the Egypt PSCs.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is derived exclusively from contracts with customers, except for immaterial amounts related to interest and other income. Royalties are considered to be part of
the price of the sale transaction and are therefore presented as a reduction to revenue. Revenue associated with the sale of crude oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids (“NGLs”) is
measured based on the consideration specified in contracts with customers. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a good or service to a customer. A good or service is transferred when the customer obtains control of the good or service. The transfer of control of oil, natural gas and
NGLs usually coincides with title passing to the customer and the customer taking physical possession. TransGlobe mainly satisfies
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its performance obligations at a point in time and the amounts of revenue recognized relating to performance obligations satisfied over time are not significant.

Revenues associated with the sales of the Company’s crude oil in Egypt are recognized by reference to actual volumes sold and quoted market prices in active markets (Dated Brent),
adjusted according to specific terms and conditions as applicable per the sales contracts. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. For
reporting purposes, the Company records the government’s share of production as royalties and taxes as all royalties and taxes are paid out of the government’s share of production.

Revenues from the sale of crude oil, natural gas, condensate and NGLs in Canada are recognized by reference to actual volumes delivered at contracted delivery points and prices.
Prices are determined by reference to quoted market prices in active markets (crude oil - NYMEX WTI, natural gas - AECO C, condensate - NYMEX WTI, and NGLs - various based on
product), adjusted according to specific terms and conditions applicable per the sales contracts. Revenues are recognized prior to the deduction of transportation costs. Revenues are
measured at the fair value of the consideration received. TransGlobe pays royalties to the Alberta provincial government and other mineral rights owners in accordance with the
established royalty regime.

Revenue segregated by product type and geographical market is disclosed in Note 2 4 .

Finance revenue and costs

Finance revenue comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in net earnings (loss), using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings.

Borrowing costs incurred for qualifying assets are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for their intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are comprised of those significant assets that require a period greater than one year to be available for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized in net earnings (loss).

Income tax

Income tax expense is comprised of current and deferred tax. TransGlobe is subject to income taxes based on the tax legislation of each respective country in which TransGlobe
conducts business.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured as the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s contractual arrangements in Egypt stipulate that income taxes are paid by the government out of its entitlement share of production sharing oil. Such amounts are
included in current income tax expense at the statutory rate in effect at the time of production.

Deferred tax

The Company determines the amount of deferred income tax assets and liabilities based on the difference between the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities reported for financial
accounting purposes from those reported for tax. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent it is probable the Company will have
sufficient future taxable earnings available against which the unused tax losses can be utilized.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement involves joint control and offers joint ownership by the Company and other joint interest partners of the financial and operating policies, and of the assets associated
with the arrangement. Joint arrangements are classified into one of two categories: joint operations or joint ventures.

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the Company and the other parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities
relating to the arrangement. Parties involved in joint operations must recognize in relation to their interests in the joint operation their proportionate share of the revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the Company and the other parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Parties involved in joint ventures must recognize their interests in joint ventures as investments and must account for that investment using the equity method.

In Canada, the Company conducts some of its oil and gas production activities through joint operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements reflect only the Company’s
proportionate interest in such activities. Joint control exists for contractual agreements governing TransGlobe’s assets whereby TransGlobe has less than 100% working interest, all of
the partners have control of the arrangement collectively, and spending on the project requires the unanimous consent of all parties that collectively control the arrangement and share
the associated risks. TransGlobe does not have any joint arrangements that are individually material to the Company or that are structured through joint venture arrangements.
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In Egypt, joint arrangements in which the  Company  is involved are conducted pursuant to PSCs. Given the nature and contractual terms associated with the PSCs, the Company has
determined that it has rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities in all of its joint arrangements and that there are no joint arrangements where the Company has rights to the
net assets. Accordingly, all joint arrangements have been classified as joint operations, and the Company has recognized its share of all revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities in
accordance with the PSCs in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Future Accounting Pronouncements​​​​​​​

TransGlobe plans to adopt the following amendment to accounting standards, issued by the IASB that is effective for the annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. The
pronouncement will be adopted on its respective effective date, however; is not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.​​​​​​​

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1  Presentation of Financial Statements,  to clarify its requirements for the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current in the
statement of financial position. This will be effective on January 1, 2023. 

4. CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Timely preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board requires that management make estimates and
assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate
to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts as future confirming events
occur. The effect of these estimates, assumptions and the use of judgments are explained throughout the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below.

Recoverability of asset carrying values

The recoverability of PNG asset carrying values are assessed at the CGU level. Determination of what constitutes a CGU is subject to management judgment of the lowest level at which
there are identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other groups of assets or properties. The factors used by TransGlobe to determine CGUs may vary
by country due to unique operating and geographic circumstances in each country. In general, TransGlobe assesses the following factors in determining whether a group of assets
generate largely independent cash inflows:
 
 •  geographic proximity of the assets within a group to one another;
 •  geographic proximity of the group of assets to other groups of assets; and
 •  homogeneity of the production from the group of assets and the sharing of infrastructure used to process and/or transport production.

In Egypt, each PSC is considered a separate CGU. In Canada, CGUs are determined by regional geography and one CGU has been identified. The asset composition of a CGU can
directly impact the recoverability of the assets included therein. In assessing the recoverability of the Company’s petroleum properties, each CGU’s carrying value is compared to its
recoverable amount, defined as the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and  value-in-use.   T he  recoverable amounts of the Company’s CGUs  are  estimated as their fair value
less costs to sell based on the net present value of the  after-tax  cash flows from the oil and natural gas reserves of each CGU based on reserves estimated by the Company’s
independent reserves evaluator.

Key input estimates used in the determination of cash flows from oil and natural gas reserves include the following:
 

 

•  Reserves - There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating oil and gas reserves. An external reserves engineering report which incorporates a full evaluation of reserves is prepared on
an annual basis with internal reserves updates completed at each quarterly period. Estimating reserves is highly complex, requiring many judgments including forward price estimates,
production costs, and recovery rates based on available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data. Changes in these judgments may have a material impact on the estimated
reserves. These estimates may change, resulting in either negative or positive impacts on net earnings (loss) as further information becomes available and as the economic environment
changes.

 •  Commodity prices - Forward price estimates of crude oil and natural gas prices are incorporated into the determination of expected future net cash flows. Commodity prices have fluctuated
significantly in recent years due to global and regional factors including supply and demand fundamentals, inventory levels, foreign exchange rates, economic, and geopolitical factors.

 •  Discount rate - The discount rate used to determine the net present value of future cash flows is based on the Company’s estimated weighted average cost of capital. Changes in the economic
environment could change the Company’s weighted average cost of capital.
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Depletion of petroleum properties 

Reserves and resources are used in the units of production calculation for depletion, depreciation and amortization. Depletion of petroleum properties is calculated based on total proved
plus probable reserves as well as estimated future development costs associated with these reserves as determined by the Company’s independent reserves evaluator. See above for
discussion of estimates and judgments involved in reserves estimation.

Income taxes

Related assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated tax consequences between amounts included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and their tax base using
substantively enacted future income tax rates. Timing of future revenue streams and future capital spending changes can affect the timing of any temporary differences, and accordingly
affect the amount of the deferred tax asset or liability calculated at a point in time. Tax interpretations, regulations and legislation in the various jurisdictions in which TransGlobe and its
subsidiaries operate are subject to change and interpretation. Such changes can affect the timing of the reversal of temporary tax differences, the tax rates in effect when such
differences reverse and TransGlobe’s ability to use tax losses and other tax pools in the future. The Company’s income tax filings are subject to audit by taxation authorities in different
jurisdictions and the results of such audits may increase or decrease the tax liability. The determination of current and deferred tax amounts recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements are based on management’s assessment of the tax positions, which includes consideration of their technical merits, communications with tax authorities and management’s
view of the most likely outcome. These differences could materially impact net earnings (loss).

Financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments are estimated based upon market and third-party inputs. These estimates are subject to change with fluctuations in commodity prices, interest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates and estimates of  non-performance  risk.

Share-based payments

The fair value estimates of equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payment awards depend on certain assumptions including share price volatility, risk-free interest rate, the term of
the awards, and the forfeiture rate which, by their nature, are subject to measurement uncertainty. The fair value estimate of TransGlobe’s Performance Share Units (“PSUs”) is
dependent upon an adjustment to the final number of PSU awards that eventually vest based on a performance multiplier that is estimated by management.

Asset retirement obligations

The provision for site restoration and abandonment in Canada is based on current legal and constructive requirements, technology, price levels and expected plans for remediation.
Actual costs and cash outflows can differ from estimates because of changes in laws and regulations, public expectations, market conditions, discovery and analysis of site conditions
and changes in technology.

Recoverability of accounts receivable

The recoverability of accounts receivable due from EGPC is assessed to determine the carrying value of accounts receivable on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Management judgment is required in performing the recoverability assessment. No material credit losses have been experienced to date, and the Company expects to collect the
accounts receivable balance in full.
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E&E Assets

Management uses judgment to determine whether a sufficient amount of economically recoverable reserves have been discovered. This requires estimates of the quantity and realizable
value of a discovery. E&E assets are subject to ongoing technical, commercial and management review to confirm the continued intent to establish the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of the discovery.

Leases

Management uses judgement to determine the incremental borrowing rate and lease term related to the application of IFRS 16. Incremental borrowing rates are based on judgments
including economic environment, term, currency, and the underlying risk inherent to the asset. The carrying amount of the  right-of-use  assets, lease obligations, and the resulting
interest and depletion and depreciation expense, may differ due to changes in the market conditions and lease term. Lease terms are based on assumptions regarding extension terms
that allow for operational flexibility and future market conditions.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Fair values of financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash, accounts receivable, derivative commodity contracts, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, lease obligations and long-term debt.

The Company has classified its cash and derivative commodity contracts as fair value through profit or loss. Both are measured at fair value with subsequent changes recognized
through net earnings (loss). Accounts receivable are classified as assets at amortized cost; accounts payable and accrued liabilities, lease obligations and long-term debt are classified
as liabilities at amortized cost, all of which are measured initially at fair value, and subsequently at amortized cost. Transaction costs attributable to financial instruments carried at
amortized cost are included in the initial measurement of the financial instrument and are subsequently amortized using the effective interest rate method.

Carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:
 
    December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020 

Classification ($000s)   
Carrying

Value   
Fair

Value   
Carrying

Value    
Fair

Value  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss    37,929    37,929    34,510    34,510 
Financial assets at amortized cost    12,217    12,217    9,996    9,996 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss    88    88    398    398 
Financial liabilities at amortized cost    29,952    29,952    43,654    43,757 

        

Assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2021 that are measured at fair value are classified into levels reflecting the method used to make the measurements. Fair values of assets and
liabilities included in Level 1 are determined by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities in Level 2 include valuations using
inputs other than quoted prices for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to
the overall fair value measurement.

The Company’s cash and derivative commodity contracts are assessed on the fair value hierarchy described above. TransGlobe’s cash is classified as Level 1. Derivative commodity
contracts are classified as Level 2. Assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the placement within the fair value
hierarchy level. There were no transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy in the period.

Derivative commodity contracts

The nature of TransGlobe’s operations exposes it to fluctuations in commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. TransGlobe monitors and, when appropriate,
uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to these fluctuations. All transactions of this nature entered into by TransGlobe are related to future crude oil and natural gas
production. TransGlobe does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. TransGlobe has elected not to designate any of its derivative financial instruments as
accounting hedges and thus accounts for changes in fair value in net earnings (loss) at each reporting period. TransGlobe has not obtained collateral or other security to support its
financial derivatives as management reviews the creditworthiness of its counterparties prior to entering into derivative contracts. The derivative financial instruments are initiated within
the guidelines of the Company’s corporate hedging policy. This includes linking all derivatives to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or
forecasted transactions.

In conjunction with the prepayment agreement (see Note 1 7 ), TransGlobe entered into a marketing contract with Mercuria Energy Trading SA (“Mercuria”) to market nine million barrels
of TransGlobe’s Egyptian entitlement oil production. The pricing of the crude oil sales  was  based on market prices at the time of sale. The Company  was  committed to hedge 60% of
its forecasted 1P entitlement production.   The prepayment agreement matured on December 31, 2021.

In conjunction with the recently renewed revolving Canadian reserves-based lending facility with ATB, the Company is required to enter into hedging arrangements based on its debt
utilization. If utilization is below 50%, TransGlobe is required to hedge 25% of its annual forecasted average daily Canadian production of oil and natural gas volumes (net of royalties);
utilization of between  50%-69%  requires a hedge of 50%; utilization of 70% and above requires a hedge of 60%.
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The following table summarizes TransGlobe’s outstanding derivative commodity contract positions as at December 31, 2021, the fair values of which have been presented on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet: 

Financial AECO natural gas contracts
 

Period Hedged   Contract  
      Remaining

Volume (GJ)   
Daily

    Volume (GJ)   
        Bought Put

C$/GJ  
        Sold Call 

C$/GJ 
Jan 2022 - Mar 2022   Collar     351,000     3,900     2.50     4.20
Apr 2022 - Jun 2022   Collar     354,900     3,900     2.50     3.35
Jul 2022 - Sep 2022   Collar     358,800     3,900     2.50     3.10
Oct 2022 - Dec 2022   Collar     358,800     3,900     2.50     4.00

          

The gains and losses on financial instruments for 2021 and 2020 are comprised as follows:
 
   Years Ended December 31 
($000s)  2021                       2020 
Realized derivative loss (gain) on derivative commodity contracts during the year    10,475    (6,801) 
Unrealized derivative loss on commodity contracts outstanding at year end   88    180 

  

Loss (gain) on financial instruments   10,563    (6,621) 
  

Overview of Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks that arise as a result of its exploration, development, production and financing activities:
 
 •  Credit risk
 •  Market risk
 •  Liquidity risk

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee oversee management’s establishment and execution of the Company’s risk management framework. Management has implemented and
monitors compliance with risk management policies. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to market conditions and the Company’s activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to fulfill their contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk primarily
relates to cash and accounts receivable, the majority of which are in respect of oil and natural gas operations. The Company generally extends unsecured credit to these parties and
therefore the collection of these amounts may be affected by changes in economic or other conditions. The Company has not experienced any material credit losses in its cash
investments or in the collection of accounts receivable to date.

TransGlobe’s accounts receivable related to the Canadian operations are with customers and joint interest partners in the petroleum and natural gas industry, and are subject to normal
industry credit risks. Receivables from petroleum and natural gas marketers are normally collected in due course. The Company currently sells its production to several purchasers under
standard industry sale and payment terms. Purchasers of TransGlobe’s natural gas, crude oil and natural gas liquids are subject to a periodic internal credit review to minimize the risk
of  non-payment.  The Company has continued to closely monitor and reassess the creditworthiness of its counterparties, including financial institutions.

Trade and other receivables are analyzed in the table below.
 

($000s)   December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020  
Neither impaired nor past due    4,022    6,542  
Not impaired and past due in the following period:        

Within 30 days    6,067    2,255  
31-60  days    851    34  
61-90  days    608    510  
Over 90 days    669    655  

    

Accounts receivable    12,217    9,996  
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The Company sold two cargoes of Gharib blend crude in Egypt during 2021 (2020 - two). Depending on the Company’s assessment of the credit of crude purchasers, they may be
required to post irrevocable letters of credit to support the sales prior to the cargo liftings. During 2021, the Company also completed monthly sales of inventoried entitlement crude oil to
EGPC for a total of   1,120.0  Mbbls  with total proceeds of $63.5 million. As at December 31, 2021, $6.1 million (December 31, 2020 – $6.0 million) of the total accounts receivable
balance of $12.2 million (December 31, 2020 – $10.0 million) is due from EGPC. 

Prior credit losses in the collection of accounts receivable by TransGlobe have been negligible and the Company does not anticipate any significant future credit losses based on forward
looking information. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded for ECL.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price movements and the associated impact on future performance of the business. The market price movements that
the Company is exposed to include commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, all of which could adversely affect the value of the Company’s financial assets,
liabilities and financial results.

Commodity price risk

The Company’s operational results and financial condition are partially dependent on the commodity prices received for its production of oil, natural gas and NGLs. The Company is
exposed to commodity price risk on its derivative assets and liabilities which are used as part of the Company’s risk management program to mitigate the effects of changes in
commodity prices on future cash flows. While transactions of this nature relate to forecasted future petroleum and natural gas production, TransGlobe does not designate these derivative
assets and liabilities as accounting hedges. As such, changes in commodity prices impact the fair value of derivative instruments and the corresponding gains or losses on derivative
instruments. The estimated fair value of unrealized commodity contracts is reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, with any change in the unrealized positions recorded to net
earnings (loss). The Company assesses these instruments on the fair value hierarchy and has classified the determination of fair value of these instruments as Level 2, as the fair values
of these transactions are based on an approximation of the amounts that would have been received from counterparties to settle the transactions outstanding as at the date of the
Consolidated Balance Sheets with reference to forward prices and market values provided by independent sources. The actual amounts realized may differ from these estimates.

Foreign currency exchange risk

As the Company’s business is conducted primarily in U.S. dollars and its financial instruments are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars, the Company’s exposure to foreign currency
exchange risk relates primarily to certain cash, accounts receivable, long-term debt, lease obligations and accounts payable and accrued liabilities denominated in Canadian dollars.
When assessing the potential impact of foreign currency exchange risk, the Company believes that 10% volatility is a reasonable measure. The Company estimates that a 10% increase
in the value of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar would  decre a se  net  earnings  for the year ended December 31, 2021 by approximately $0.8 million and conversely, a 10%
decrease in the value of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar would  increase  net  earnings  by $0.8 million for the same period. The Company does not utilize derivative
instruments to manage this risk.

The Company is also exposed to foreign currency exchange risk on cash balances denominated in Egyptian pounds. Some collections of accounts receivable from the Egyptian
Government are received in Egyptian pounds, and while the Company is generally able to spend the Egyptian pounds received on accounts payable denominated in Egyptian pounds,
there remains foreign currency exchange risk exposure on Egyptian pound cash balances. Using  month-end  cash balances converted at  month-end  foreign exchange rates, the
average Egyptian pound cash balance for 2021 was $1.3 million (2020 - $3.0 million) in equivalent U.S. dollars. The Company estimates that a 10% increase in the value of the Egyptian
pound against the U.S. dollar would  decrease  net  earnings  for the year ended December 31, 2021 by approximately $0.1 million and conversely a 10% decrease in the value of the
Egyptian pound against the U.S. dollar would  increase  net  earnings  by $0.1 million for the same period. The Company does not currently utilize derivative instruments to manage
foreign currency exchange risk.

The Company maintains nominal balances of British Pounds sterling to pay  in-country  costs incurred in operating its London office. Foreign exchange risk on these funds is not
considered material.

Interest rate risk

Fluctuations in interest rates could result in a significant change in the amount the Company pays to service variable interest debt. No derivative contracts were entered into during 2021
to mitigate interest rate risk. When assessing interest rate risk applicable to the Company’s variable interest debt, the Company believes 1% volatility is a reasonable measure. The effect
of interest rates increasing by 1% would  de crease  the Company’s net  e arnings , for the year ended December 31, 2021, by $0.1 million and conversely, the effect of interest rates
decreasing by 1% would  increase  the Company’s net   earning s, for the year ended December 31, 2021, by $0.1 million.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. Liquidity describes a company’s ability to access cash. Companies
operating in the upstream oil and gas industry require sufficient cash in order to fund capital programs necessary to maintain and increase production and proved reserves, to acquire
strategic oil and gas assets and to repay debt.

The Company actively maintains credit facilities to ensure it has sufficient available funds to meet current and foreseeable financial requirements at a reasonable cost. The following are
the contractual maturities of financial liabilities at December 31, 2021:
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         Payment Due by Period 1  

($000s)   

Recognized
in Financial
Statements    

Contractual
Cash Flows    

Less than
1 year    

1-3
years    

4-5
years   

More
than

5 years 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    Yes-Liability    26,112    26,112    -    -    - 
Long-term debt    Yes-Liability    3,040    -    3,040    -    - 
Lease obligations 2    Yes-Liability    800    764    36    -    - 
Drilling commitment    No     1,000    1,000    -    -    - 
Share-based compensation liabilities    Yes-Liability    10,133    6,174    3,959    -    - 
Derivative commodity contracts    Yes-Liability    88    88    -    -    - 
Equipment and facility leases 3    No     481    481    -    -    - 

            

Total      41,654    34,619    7,035    -    - 
            

 

 1 Payments denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at December 31, 2021 exchange rates
 

 2 These amounts include the notional principal and interest payments.
 

 3 Equipment lease includes one workover rig.

As at December 31, 2021, the Company had $17.7 million of revolving credit facilities with $3.0 million drawn and $14.7 million available. During 2021, the prepayment agreement  with
Mercuria  was fully repaid in the amount of $15.0 million (See Note 1 7 ). The Company also has a revolving Canadian reserves-based lending facility with ATB totaling C$22.5 million
($17.7 million), of which C$ 3.9 million ($3.0 million) was drawn and outstanding. During 2021, the Company repaid C$5.0 million ($3.9 million) and had drawings of C$0.5 million
($0.4 million) on this facility (See Note 17).

The Company actively monitors its liquidity to ensure that its cash flows, credit facilities and working capital are adequate to support these financial liabilities, as well as the Company’s
capital programs.

To date, the Company has experienced no difficulties with transferring funds abroad.

Capital disclosures

TransGlobe’s objective when managing capital is to ensure the Company will have the financial capacity, liquidity and flexibility to fund the ongoing exploration and development of its
petroleum assets. The Company’s financial objectives and strategy have remained substantially unchanged over the last two completed fiscal years. These objectives and strategy are
reviewed on an annual basis. 

The Company was subject to, and in compliance with, financial covenants as at December 31, 2021 and 2020. TransGlobe defines and computes its capital as follows:
 
   Years Ended December 31 
($000s)   2021    2020 
Long-term debt, including the current portion    3,040   21,464 
Current assets    (54,170)   (53,864) 
Current liabilities, excluding the current portion of long-term debt    33,138   23,618 

  

Net debt    (17,992)   (8,782) 
  

Shareholder’s equity    178,574   138,295 
Total capital    160,582   129,513 

  

 

6. OTHER REVENUE

Other revenue includes funding received under the Alberta Site Rehabilitation Program (ASRP). Government grants are recognized when the Company has reasonable assurance that it
has complied with the relevant conditions of the grant and that it will be received.

7. FINANCE REVENUE AND COSTS

Finance revenue relates to interest earned on the Company’s bank account balances. 

Finance costs recognized in net earnings (loss) were as follows:
 
   Years Ended December 31 

($000s)   2021     2020 
Interest on long-term debt    536    1,597 
Interest on borrowing base facility    320    317 
Amortization of deferred financing costs    103    395 
Interest on lease obligations    182    211 

    

Finance costs    1,141    2,520 
    

Interest paid    856    1,918 
    

8. SELLING COSTS 

Selling costs include transportation and marketing costs associated with the sale of the Company’s Egyptian crude oil production to third-party buyers and EGPC. The Company
completed two direct crude oil sales to third-party buyers during the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020 - two). The Company also completed monthly sales of inventoried entitlement
crude oil to EGPC in 2021 and 2020.
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9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are comprised principally of amounts owed from EGPC.

There were no amounts due from related parties and no loans to management or employees as at December 31, 2021 or December 31, 2020.

10. PRODUCT INVENTORY

Product inventory consists of the Company’s entitlement crude oil barrels in Egypt, which are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Costs include operating expenses and
depletion associated with crude oil entitlement barrels and are determined on a concession by concession basis. These amounts are initially capitalized and expensed when sold.

As at December 31, 2021, the Company held nil crude oil in inventory (December 31, 2020 –  227.9  mbbls valued at approximately $ 25.57/bbl) .  During 2021, product inventory of $ 5.8
  million was expensed (2020 - $ 11.7  million expensed). 

11. INCOME TAXES

The Company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
 
($000s)   2021                      2020 
Deferred income tax asset and liability, beginning of year    -   - 

Expenses related to the origination and reversal of temporary differences for:    
Property and equipment    10,390   (25,507) 
Non-capital  losses carried forward    1,580   (4,459) 
Long-term liabilities    -   - 
Share issue expenses    -   - 

Changes in unrecognized tax benefits    (11,968)  29,967 
  

Deferred income tax expense recognized in net earnings (loss)    6,246   3,723 
Deferred income tax recovery recognized in net earnings (loss)    (6,246)  (3,723) 

  

Deferred income tax asset, end of year    6,246   3,723 
Deferred income tax liability, end of year    (6,246)  (3,723) 

  

The Company has  non-capital  losses of $110.1 million (2020 - $117.0 million) that expire between 2027 and  2041 . A deferred tax asset of $6.3 million (2020 - $3.7 million) was
recognized in respect of unused tax losses in West Gharib. The Company has an additional $33.2 million (2020 - $42.5 million) in unrecognized tax benefits arising in foreign
jurisdictions.

Current income taxes represent income taxes incurred and paid under the laws of Egypt pursuant to the PSCs on the West Gharib, West Bakr, NW Gharib and South Ghazalat
concessions.

Income taxes vary from the amount that would be computed by applying the average Canadian statutory income tax rate of 23% (2020 – 24%) to income before taxes as follows:
 
($000s)   2021                      2020 
Income taxes calculated at the Canadian statutory rate    14,432   (15,328) 
Increases (decreases) in income taxes resulting from:    

Non-deductible  expenses    2,539   5,260 
Changes in unrecognized tax benefits    (11,968)     29,966 
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 1    16,176   (6,562) 
Changes in tax rates and other    1,232   194 

  

Income tax expense - current    22,411   13,530 
  

 1 The statutory tax rate in Egypt is 40.55%.

The Company’s consolidated effective income tax rate for 2021 was 35.7% (2020 – 21.2%).
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12. INTANGIBLE EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

The following table reconciles the changes in TransGlobe’s exploration and evaluation assets:
 

($000s)   2021                     2020 
Balance, beginning of year    584    33,706 

Additions to exploration and evaluation assets    2,089    337 
Impairment loss    -    (33,459) 

    

Balance, end of year    2,673    584 
    

At December 31, 2021, there were no indicators of impairment present on the Company’s E&E assets. 

In 2020, the disruption experienced by the industry, related to the effects caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, which began during the first quarter of 2020 resulted in the Company
identifying indicators of impairment on its intangible exploration and evaluation (“E&E”) assets as at March 31, 2020. Further consideration was given to the scale of exploration results
compared to investments to date and consideration of the uncertainty of the timing of additional exploration activities in these areas given the current economic environment.  For the year
ended December 31, 2020, the Company recorded a  non-cash  impairment loss of $33.5 million on its exploration and evaluation assets, which included a $29.5 million impairment loss
on the South Ghazalat concession and a $4.0 million impairment loss on the North West Gharib concession. The impairment loss recognized represented the entire E&E asset balance
in the two concessions.

Exploration and evaluation assets as at December 31, 2021 includes $0.6 million in Canada (December 31, 2020-   $0.6 million)   and $2.1 million in South Ghazalat (December 31,
2020- $nil). 

13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following table reconciles the changes in TransGlobe’s property and equipment assets:
 

($000s)   PNG Assets  Other Assets   Total 
Cost      

    

Balance at December 31, 2019    712,552   19,267    731,819 
Increase in  right-of-use  assets    1,650   49    1,699 
Additions    6,726   435    7,161 
Change in estimate for asset retirement obligations    (624)   -    (624) 

    

Balance at December 31, 2020    720,304   19,751    740,055 
Increase in  right-of-use  assets    -   536    536 
Additions    24,636   97    24,733 
Change in estimate for asset retirement obligations (Note 1 4 )    1,000   -    1,000 

    

Balance at December 31, 2021    745,940   20,384    766,324 
    

 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment losses      
Balance at December 31, 2019    518,408   14,971    533,379 

Depletion, depreciation and amortization for the year 1    24,786   1,863    26,649 
Impairment los s   40,036    -    40,036  

    

Balance at December 31, 2020    583,230   16,834    600,064 
Depletion, depreciation and amortization for the year 1    23,338   1,348    24,686 
Impairment reversal    (31,521)   -    (31,521) 

    

Balance at December 31, 2021    575,047   18,182    593,229 
    

Foreign Exchange      
    

Balance at December 31, 2019    2,006   -    2,006 
Currency translation adjustments    979   -    979 

    

Balance at December 31, 2020    2,985   -    2,985 
Currency translation adjustments    (74)   -    (74) 

    

Balance at December 31, 2021    2,911   -    2,911 
    

Net book value      
    

At December 31, 2020    140,059   2,917    142,976 
At December 31, 2021    173,804   2,202    176,006 

    

 1 Depletion, depreciation and amortization for the period includes amounts capitalized to product inventory for barrels produced but not sold in the period.

At September 30, 2021 indicators of impairment reversal were present on the Company’s PNG assets in the West Gharib, West Bakr, North West Gharib and Canada cash-generating
units (“CGU”) due to an increase and stabilization in forecasted commodity prices. As a result of the indicators of impairment reversal, the Company performed impairment reversal
calculations at September 30, 2021 on the identified CGUs based on fair value less costs to sell (fair value hierarchy Level 3), using estimated  after-tax  cash discounted cash flows on
proved plus probable reserves. The Company used a discount rate of 15% for Egypt and 10% for Canada and the following commodity price estimates:



 TRANSGLOBE ENERGY CORPORATION   TSX & AIM: TGL      NASDAQ: TGA 
 
   Egypt 1               Canada 1              

    

Brent
Crude

Oil         WTI Oil   AECO Gas   
Edmonton

Pentane    
Edmonton

Butane    
Edmonton

Propane   
Spec

Ethane    
Exchange

Rate  
Year   $/Bbl        $/Bbl   $C/Mcf   $C/Bbl   $C/Bbl   $C/Bbl   $C/Bbl   USD/CAD 
2021    70.30       67.33    3.52    96.20    78.47    65.84    13.69    0.790 
2022    75.00       72.00    3.75    91.19    59.87    47.04    12.16    0.795 
2023    72.51       69.01    3.20    85.01    48.38    32.26    10.26    0.800 
2024    71.24       67.24    2.99    82.78    46.96    31.31    9.56    0.800 
2025    72.66       68.58    3.05    84.42    47.90    31.94    9.77    0.800 
2026    74.12       69.96    3.12    86.12    48.86    32.57    9.98    0.800 
2027    75.59       71.35    3.17    87.84    49.84    33.23    10.18    0.800 
2028    77.11       72.78    3.24    89.60    50.83    33.89    10.41    0.800 
2029    78.66       74.24    3.31    91.39    51.85    34.57    10.63    0.800 
2030    80.22       75.72    3.37    93.22    52.89    35.26    10.86    0.800 
Thereafter 2    +2.0%/yr       +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    0.800 

                  

 1 GLJ Petroleum Consultants Ltd. (“GLJ”) price forecasts, effective October 1, 2021.
 

 2 Percentage change represents the increase in each year after 2030 to the end of the reserves life.

Based on the results of the impairment reversal calculations completed, recoverable amounts were determined to be greater than the carrying values of the CGUs tested resulting in
$31.5 million of impairment reversal being  recorded:
 

CGU                           2021 1                      2020 
West Gharib    (20,527)   24,769 
West Bakr    (4,615)   6,610 
North West Gharib    (3,028)   4,596 
Canada    (3,351)   4,061 

  

Total    (31,521)   40,036 
  

 

 1  The impairment reversal for all CGUs was limited to total accumulated impairments less subsequent depletion.

At December 31, 2021, there were no impairment indicators present on the Company’s D&P assets.

The collapse in commodity prices during the first quarter of 2020 and the resulting impact to the Company resulted in an increase in the market capitalization deficit from December 31,
2019 which led the Company to conclude there were indicators of impairment present on its petroleum and natural gas (“PNG”) assets as at March 31, 2020.

Impairment tests were carried out at March 31, 2020 on all of its cash-generating units (“CGU”) and were based on fair value less costs to sell calculations (fair value hierarchy Level 3),
using estimated after-tax cash discounted cash flows on proved plus probable reserves. The Company used discount rates based on a calculated cost of capital of 15% in Egypt
and 11% in Canada along with the following commodity price estimates:
 
   Egypt 1               Canada 1              

    

Brent
Crude

Oil         WTI Oil   AECO Gas   
Edmonton

Pentane    
Edmonton

Butane   
Edmonton

Propane   
Spec

Ethane    
Exchange

Rate  
Year   $/Bbl        $/Bbl   $C/Mcf   $C/Bbl   $C/Bbl   $C/Bbl   $C/Bbl   USD/CAD 
2020    34.00         30.00    1.95    37.47    21.23    9.61    5.99    0.720 
2021    45.50         41.00    2.25    52.05    33.08    19.18    7.01    0.730 
2022    52.50         47.50    2.35    61.56    39.52    25.41    7.36    0.735 
2023    57.50         52.50    2.45    68.92    45.57    28.89    7.71    0.740 
2024    62.50         57.50    2.55    75.84    50.99    32.32    8.05    0.745 
2025    62.95         58.95    2.65    77.27    52.02    32.97    8.39    0.750 
2026    64.13         60.13    2.70    78.84    53.14    33.68    8.57    0.750 
2027    65.33         61.33    2.76    80.44    54.27    34.40    8.76    0.750 
2028    66.56         62.56    2.81    82.08    55.44    35.14    8.94    0.750 
2029    67.81         63.81    2.87    83.75    56.62    35.89    9.13    0.750 
Thereafter 2    +2.0%/yr         +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    +2.0%/yr    0.750 

 

 1  GLJ Petroleum Consultants Ltd. (“GLJ”) price forecasts, effective April 1, 202 0 .
 

 2  Percentage change represents the increase in each year after 2029 to the end of the reserves life.

The 2020 impairment losses were recorded in Q1-2020 to reduce the carrying value of these PNG assets to their recoverable amounts, which was  $23.8   million in West Gharib,
$55.0 million in West Bakr, $nil in North West Gharib and  $60.0  million in Canada as at March 31, 2020. There were no further impairment losses recorded in the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2020.

The following table discloses the carrying amount and depreciation charge for  right-of-use  assets by the class of underlying asset as at and for the year ended December 31, 2021:
 

($000s)   PNG Assets  Other Assets  Total 
Net book value at January 1, 2020    374   1,285   1,659 

Increase in  right-of-use  assets    1650   49   1,699 
Depreciation for the year    (581)   (937)   (1,518) 

  

Net book value at December 31, 2020    1,443   397   1,840 
Increase in  right-of-use  assets    -   536   536 
Depreciation for the year    (1,067)   (687)   (1,754) 

  

Net book value at December 31, 2021    376   246   622 
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14 . ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 

The following table reconciles the change in TransGlobe’s asset retirement obligation:
 

($000s)   2021                      2020 
Balance, beginning of year    13,042   13,612 

Changes in estimates for asset retirement obligations and additional obligations recognized    1,000   (624) 
Obligations settled    (135)   (458) 
Asset retirement obligation accretion    207   259 
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates    (12 )   253 

  

Balance, end of year    14,102   13,042 
  

As at December 31, 2021, the entire asset retirement obligation balance relates to the Company’s Canadian operations. TransGlobe has estimated the net present value of its asset
retirement obligation to be $14.1 million as at December 31, 2021 (2020 - $13.0 million) based on a total undiscounted future liability of $18.8 million (2020 - $18.5 million). These
payments are expected to be made between 2022 and 2066. TransGlobe calculated the present value of the obligations using discount  rates between 0.95% and 1.68%  (2020 – 2.00% )
to reflect the market assessment of the time value of money as well as risks specific to liabilities that have not been included in the cash flow estimates. The inflation rate used in
determining the cash flow estimate was 2% per annum (2020 – 2% per annum).

As at December 31, 2021 there is no ARO associated with the Egypt production sharing concessions.

15 . LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The following table reconciles TransGlobe’s lease obligations:
 
($000s)   As at December 31, 2021   As at December 31, 2020 
Less than 1 year    783    1,760 
1 - 3 years    36    434 

    

Total lease payments    819    2,194 
Amounts representing interest    19    180 

    

Present value of net lease payments    800    2,014 
Current portion of lease obligations    764    1,553 

    

Non-current  portion of lease obligations    36    461 
    

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company spent  $0.2 million (20 20  - $0.2 million) on interest expense and paid a total cash outflow of $1.9 million (20 20  - $1.7 million)
relating to lease obligations.

16 . ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are comprised of current trade payables and accrued expenses due to third-parties.   There were no  amounts due to related parties as at
December 31, 2021 or December 31, 2020. 

17 . LONG-TERM DEBT

The following table reconciles the changes in TransGlobe’s long-term debt, including the current portion:
 
($000s)   2021                      2020 
Balance, beginning of year    21,464   37,041 

Draws on revolving credit facility    415   406 
Repayment of long-term debt    (18,937)   (16,504) 
Amortization of deferred financing costs    103   395 
Effects of movements in foreign exchange rates    (5)   126 

  

Balance, end of year    3,040   21,464 
Current portion of long-term debt     -    (14,897 )  
Non-current portion of long-term deb t     3,040   6,567 

  

The Company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings are measured at amortized cost.

Based on the Company’s current forecast of future production and prices the estimated future debt payments on long-term debt as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:
 

($000s)   
Prepayment
Agreement   

Reserves Based
Lending Facility   Total 

202 3    -    3,040    3,040 
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Prepayment Agreement
 

  ($000s)   
As at

December 31, 2021   
As at

December 31, 2020 
  Prepayment agreement - amount drawn    -    15,000 
  Deferred financing costs    -    (103) 

    

   -    14,897 
    

On February 10, 2017, the Company completed a $75 million crude oil prepayment agreement between its wholly-owned subsidiary, TransGlobe Petroleum International Inc. (“TPI”) and
Mercuria.

TPI’s obligations under the prepayment agreement were guaranteed by the Company and the subsidiaries of TPI (the “Guarantors”). The obligations of TPI and the Guarantors were
supported by, among other things, a pledge of equity held by the Company in TPI and a pledge of equity held by TPI in its subsidiaries. The funding arrangement had an initial term of  four
years,   initially set to mature on March 31, 2021. Effective March 31, 2020 the Company received a six month extension on the prepayment agreement. On September 27, 2021 the
prepayment agreement was amended to $10.0 million (undrawn) and further extended to December 31, 2021 to coincide with the expiry of TransGlobe’s remaining Brent crude oil hedges.
Advances bore interest at a rate of LIBOR plus  6.0% .  The funding arrangement was revolving with each advance to be satisfied through the delivery of crude oil to Mercuria. Further
advances became available upon delivery of crude oil to Mercuria up to a maximum of  $75.0  million and were subject to compliance with the other terms and conditions of the
prepayment agreement. The prepayment agreement was initially recognized at fair value, net of financing costs, and was subsequently measured at amortized cost. Financing costs of
 $1.5  million were amortized over the term of the prepayment agreement using the effective interest rate method. 

The Company was subject to certain financial covenants in accordance with the terms of the prepayment agreement. These covenants were tested on June 30 and December 31 of each
year for the life of the prepayment agreement. The financial covenants included financial measures defined within the prepayment agreement that are not defined under IFRS. These
financial measures were defined by the prepayment agreement as follows:
 

 

•  the ratio of the Company’s total consolidated indebtedness (calculated by including any outstanding letters of credit or bank guarantees and adding back any cash held by the Company on a
consolidated basis) on each financial covenant test date to the Company’s consolidated net cash generated by (used in) operating activities (where net cash generated includes the fair market
value of crude oil inventory held as at the financial covenant test date) for the trailing 12 month period ending on that financial covenant test date  could   not exceed 4.00:1.00. The ratio as at
December 31, 2020  was  (0.32):1.00;

 •  the ratio of Current Assets of the Company on a consolidated basis (calculated, in the case of crude oil inventory, by adjusting the value to market value) to Current Liabilities of the Company on
a consolidated basis on each financial covenant test date  coul d   not be less than  1.00 : 1.00 . The ratio as at December 31, 2020  wa s 1.47 :1.00; and 

 •  the ratio of the parent’s  non-consolidated  asset value to the aggregate amount of indebtedness outstanding under the advance documents on each financial covenant test date  could  not be less
than 2.00:3.00. The ratio as at December 31, 2020  was  18.21:3.00 .

As at December 31, 2020, the Company was in compliance with all the financial covenants under the prepayment agreement which matured at year end fully repaid.

The Company was also subject to a cover ratio provision. The cover ratio, defined as the value of the Company’s Egyptian forecasted entitlement crude oil production on a forward 
12-month  basis to the prepayment service obligations, could not be less tha n 1.25 :1.00. Prepayment service obligations included the principal outstanding of the advances at the time
and any costs, fees, expenses, interest and other amounts outstanding or forecasted to be due during the applicable prepayment period. In the event the cover ratio fell below  1.25 :1.00,
TransGlobe was required to:
 
 •  reimburse in cash the relevant portion of the advances such that the cover ratio becomes equal to or greater than  1.25 :1.00; and/or
 •  amend the initial commercial contract to extend its duration and amend the maturity date under the agreement.

The cover ratio as at December 31, 2020 was  5.08 :1.00; the Company was in compliance with the cover ratio provision under the prepayment agreement.

During the third quarter of 2021, the Company repaid the remaining $10.0 million outstanding under the prepayment agreement in full. The Mercuria prepayment agreement matured on
December 31, 2021.

Reserves-Based Lending Facility
   ($000s)   December 31, 2021   December 31, 2020 
   Reserves-based lending facility - amount drawn    3,040    6,567 

    

As at December 31, 2020 the Company had in place a revolving Canadian reserves-based lending facility with ATB Financial totaling  C$15.0 million ($11.0   million). On June 4, 2021, the
ATB facility was renewed for  C$22.5 million ($17.7  million), of which  C$3.9 million ($3.0  million) was drawn at December 31, 2021 (December 31, 2020 -  C$8.3  million/ $6.6  million).
Under the renewed agreement, the Company is required to enter into hedging arrangements based on its debt utilization. If utilization is below 50%, TransGlobe is required to hedge 25%
of its annual forecasted average daily Canadian production of oil and natural gas volumes (net of royalties); utilization of between 50%-69% requires a hedge of 50%; utilization of 70% and
above requires a hedge of 60%. There were no other changes to the key terms of the agreement from December 31, 2020. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company
repaid  C$5.0 million ($3.9  million) and drew  C$0.5 million ($0.4 million) on the revolving facility.

The facility borrowing base is  re-calculated  no less frequently than on a semi-annual basis of May 31 and November 30 of each year, or as requested by the lender. Lender shall notify the
Company of each change in the amount of the borrowing base. In the event that the lender  re-calculates  the borrowing base to be an amount that is less than the borrowings outstanding
under the facility, the Company shall repay the difference between such borrowings outstanding and the new borrowing base within 45 days of receiving notice of the new borrowing base.

The Company may request an extension of the term date by no later than 90 days prior to the then-current term date, and the lender may in its sole discretion agree to extend the term date
for a further period of 364 days. Unless extended, before  May 30, 2022  any unutilized amount of the facility will be canceled, and the amount of the facility will be reduced to the
aggregate borrowings outstanding on that date. The balance of all amounts owing under the facility are due and payable in full on the date falling one year after the term date. If no
extension is granted by the lender, the amounts owing pursuant to the facility are due at the maturity date. The facility bears interest at a rate of either ATB Prime or CDOR (Canadian
Dollar Offered Rate) plus applicable margins that vary from 2.25% to 4.25% (December 31,  2020:  2.25% to 4.25%) depending on the
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company’s  net  debt to trailing cash flow ratio. The revolving  reserves- based lending facility was initially recognized at fair value, net of financing costs, and has subsequently been
measured at amortized cost. Financing costs of $0.1 million were amortized over the initial term of the agreement using the effective interest rate method. The Company is subject to
certain financial covenants in accordance with the terms of the agreement. These financial measures are defined by the agreement as follows:
 
 •  the Company shall not permit the working capital ratio (calculated as current assets plus any undrawn availability under the facility, to current liabilities less any amount drawn under the facility)

to fall below 1.00:1.00. The working capital ratio as at December 31, 202 1  is 2.22:1.00 (2020 – 2.82:1.00); and

 
•  the Company shall not permit the ratio of net debt to trailing cash flows as at the end of any fiscal quarter to exceed 3.00:1.00. According to the agreement net debt is, as of the end of any fiscal

quarter and as determined in accordance with IFRS on a  non-consolidated  basis, and without duplication, an amount equal to the amount of total debt less current assets. Trailing cash flow is
defined as the two most recently completed fiscal quarters, annualized. The net debt to trailing cash flows ratio as at December 31, 202 1  is 0.26:1.00 (2020 - 0.53:1.00).

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company was in compliance with all the financial covenants under the reserves-based lending facility.

18 . COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As part of its normal business, the Company entered into arrangements and incurred obligations that will impact the Company’s future operations and liquidity. The principal commitments
of the Company are as follows:
 
        Payment Due by Period 1  

  ($000s)   

Recognized
in Financial
Statements   

Contractual
Cash

Flows    
Less than

1 year    
1-3

years    
4-5

years   

More
than

5 years 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   Yes-Liability    26,112    26,112    -    -    - 
Long-term debt   Yes-Liability    3,040    -    3,040    -    - 
Lease  obligations2   Yes-Liability    800    764    36    -    - 
Drilling commitment   No    1,000    1,000    -    -    - 
Share-based compensation  liabilities   Yes-Liability    10,133    6,174    3,959    -    - 
Derivative commodity contracts   Yes-Liability    88    88    -    -    - 
Equipment and facility  leases3   No    481    481    -     -    - 

            

Total      41,654    34,619    7,035    -    - 
            

 

 1  Payments denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at December 31, 2021 exchange rates.
 

 2 These amounts include the notional principal and interest payments.
 

 3  Equipment lease includes one workover rig.

Pursuant to the approved South Ghazalat development lease, the Company is committed to drill one exploration well during the initial four year period of the 20 year development lease.
The Company ha d  issued a production guarantee in the amount of $1.0  million which was  met  subsequent to the commitment well being drilled in 2021 .

In the normal course of its operations, the Company may be subject to litigation and claims. Although it is not possible to estimate the extent of potential costs, if any, management believes
that the ultimate resolution of such contingencies would not have a material adverse impact on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of the Company.

On March 31, 2015, TG Holdings Yemen, Inc. (“TG Holdings”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of TransGlobe, relinquished its 13.8% interest in a concession in western Yemen known as
“Block 32”. In 2018, the Ministry of Oil and Minerals of the Republic of Yemen (“MOM”) raised claims against the contractor parties, including TG Holdings. The claims variously related to
accounting practices, environmental and asset integrity/retirement claims, claims related to payment of customs duties and penalties, claims related to amounts allegedly owing to third
parties for employment and facilities usage claims, and claims related to the handover of the concession.

A decision was rendered by the arbitral tribunal with an effective date of March 31, 2021. The final award determined that the contractor parties, including TG Holdings, are entitled to their
share of Production Sharing Oil that was lifted by MOM in the amount of $5.0 million. The award also determined that the contractor parties, including TG Holdings, are jointly and severally
liable for certain costs in the amount of $6.5 million.

The Company is not aware of any material provisions or other contingent liabilities as at December 31, 2021.

19 . SHARE CAPITAL

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares with no par value. Shares in issue as at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are outlined below:
 
    Years Ended December 31, 2021   Year Ended December 31, 2020  
  (000s)   Shares   Amount ($)  Shares   Amount ($) 
Balance, beginning of year    72,543    152,805    72,543    152,805 
    Stock options exercised    232    (340)   -    - 
   Contributed surplus re-class on exercise     -      556     -      -  

        

Balance, end of year    72,775    153,021    72,543    152,805 
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20 . SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Stock option plan

The Company operates a stock option plan (the “Plan”) to provide equity-settled share-based remuneration to directors, officers and employees. The number of common shares that may
be issued pursuant to the exercise of options awarded under the Plan and all other Security-Based Compensation Arrangements of the Company is 10% of the common shares outstanding
from time to time. All incentive stock options granted under the Plan have a  per-share  exercise price equal to the weighted average trading price of the common shares for the five trading
days prior to the date of grant. Each tranche of an award with different vesting dates is considered a separate grant for the calculation of fair value and the resulting fair value is amortized
over the vesting period of the respective tranche.

The following tables summarize information about the stock options outstanding and exercisable at the dates indicated:
 
    2021   2020 

  (000s)   Number of Options  
Weighted-Average
Exercise Price ($C)   Number of Options  

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price ($C) 

  Options outstanding, beginning of year    4,589   2.16    4,481   2.86 
      Granted    402   2.16    819   0.79 
      Exercise d     (906)     2.34   -    -  
      Expired    (1,002)   2.19    (711)   4.99 

    

  Options outstanding, end of year    3,083   2.10    4,589   2.16 
    

  Options exercisable, end of year    1,810   2.35    2,797   2.35 
    

 
    Options Outstanding    Options Exercisable  

  Exercise Price
  (C$)   

Number
Outstanding at

Dec. 31, 2021
(000s)   

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)   

Weighted-
Average

Exercise price
(C$)   

Number
Exercisable at
Dec. 31, 2021

(000s)   

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)   

Weighted-
Average

Exercise price
(C$) 

  0.79 - 1.48    819    3.4    0.79    273    3.4    0.79 
  1.49 - 2.39    684    2.6    2.16    282    0.4    2.16 
  2.4 0  - 2.73    604    1.4    2.62    604    1.4    2.62 
  2.74 - 2.83    976    2.2    2.83    651    2.2    2.83 

            

   3,083    2.5    2.10    1,810    1.8    2.35 
            

Compensation  expense of $0.3 million was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020 - $0.4  million) in general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Earnings (Loss) and Changes in Shareholders’ Equity in respect of stock options. The fair value of all common stock options granted is
estimated on the date of grant using the lattice-based trinomial option pricing model.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the period and the assumptions used in their determination are noted below:
 
    2021  2020 
  Weighted average fair market value per option (C$)    0.83   0.29 
  Risk free interest rate    1.00%   0.37% 
  Expected volatility (based on actual historical volatility)    61.48%   58.36% 
  Dividend rate    -   - 
  Suboptimal exercise factor    1.25   1.25 

  

All options granted vest annually over a three-year period and expire five years after  the grant date. During the year ended December 31, 2021, employees exercised 0.9 million stock
options valued at  C $2.1 million (2020 –  nil). As at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the entire balance in contributed surplus was related to previously recognized share-
based compensation expense on equity-settled stock options.

Restricted share unit, performance share unit and deferred share unit plans

In May 2014, the Company implemented a restricted share unit (“RSU”) plan, a performance share unit (“PSU”) plan and a deferred share unit (“DSU”) plan.

RSUs may be issued to directors, officers and employees of the Company, and each RSU entitles the holder to a cash payment equal to the fair market value of a TransGlobe common
share on the vesting date of the RSU. All RSUs granted vest annually over a three-year period, and all must be settled within 30 days of their respective vesting dates.

PSUs are similar to RSUs, except that the number of PSUs that ultimately vest is further dependent upon an adjustment to the final number of PSU awards that eventually vest based on a
performance multiplier. The performance multiplier is based on TransGlobe’s relative total shareholder return performance compared to a defined peer group. The performance multiplier is
calculated at the time of payment and can result in cash compensation issued upon vesting of the PSUs ranging from 0% to 200% of the original PSU grant. All PSUs granted vest on the
third anniversary of their grant date, and all must be settled within 60 days of their vesting dates.

DSUs are similar to RSUs, except that they become fully vested on the date of grant and are only issued to directors of the Company. Distributions under the DSU plan do not occur until
the retirement of the DSU holder from the Company’s Board of Directors.
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The number of RSUs, PSUs and DSUs outstanding as at December 31, 2021 are as follows:
 
  (000s)   RSUs               PSUs               DSUs 
  Units outstanding, December 31, 2019    839    1,640    589 
  Granted    689    1,196    392 
  Exercised    (385)    (431)    (155) 
  Forfeited    (308)    (133)    - 

      

  Units outstanding, December 31, 2020    835    2,272    826 
      Granted    362    602    200 
      Exercised / Expired    (346)    (592)    (94) 
      Forfeited   (28)    -    -  

      

  Units outstanding, December 31, 2021    823    2,282    932 
      

Compensation expense of $8.9  million was recorded in general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Earnings (Loss)
during the year ended December 31, 2021 in respect of share units granted under the three plans described above (2020 -  $0.4 million).

21. PER SHARE AMOUNTS

The basic weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2021  was 72,544,000 (2020  –  basic 72,542,071).  The diluted weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2021 was 73,181,834 (2020 – diluted 72,542,071). These outstanding share amounts were used to calculate
net earnings (loss) per share in the respective periods.

In determining diluted net earnings (loss) per share, the Company assumes that the proceeds received from the exercise of  “in-the-money”  stock options are used to repurchase
common shares at the average market price. In calculating the weighted-average number of diluted common shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company
excluded 1,580,327 stock options (2020 - 4,589,042) as their exercise price was greater than the average common share market price in the year.

22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Details of controlled and consolidated entities active as at December 31, 2021 are as follows*:
 

    
Country of

Incorporation   
Ownership Interest

2021   
Ownership Interest

2020
  TG Energy UK Ltd   United Kingdom  100%   100%
  TransGlobe Petroleum International Inc.   Turks & Caicos   100%   100%
  TG Holdings Yemen Inc.   Turks & Caicos   100%   100%
  TransGlobe West Bakr Inc.   Turks & Caicos   100%   100%
  TransGlobe West Gharib Inc.   Turks & Caicos   100%   100%
  TG Energy Marketing Inc.   Turks & Caicos   100%   100%
  TG NW Gharib Inc.   Turks & Caicos   100%   100%
  TG S Ghazalat Inc.   Turks & Caicos   100%   100%

      

 *  Includes only entities that were active as at December 31, 2021.

23. COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Key management personnel have been identified as the Board of Directors and the three executive officers of the Company (2020 – three executive officers). Salaries, incentives and
short-term benefits are composed of salaries and directors’ fees, annual bonuses, and other benefits. Share-based compensation includes compensation to TransGlobe’s key
management personnel under the PSU, DSU and stock option Plans.

The compensation relating to key management personnel is as follows:
 
  ($000s)   2021   2020 
  Salaries, incentives and short-term benefits    2,231    1,762 
  Share-based compensation    1,324    826 

    

  Total    3,555    2,588 
    

24. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020: the Arab Republic of Egypt and Canada. The Company, through its
operating segments, is engaged primarily in oil exploration, development and production and the acquisition of oil and gas properties. In presenting information on the basis of operating
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of assets which is also consistent with the location of the segment customers. Segmented assets are also based on
the geographical location of the assets. There are no inter-segment sales. The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same  as  the Company’s accounting  policies .
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   Years Ended December 31  
    2021  2020  2021  2020  2021  2020  2021  2020 
  ($000s)   Egypt   Canada   Corporate   Total  
  Revenue          

Oil sales    257,338   173,086   18,225   8,679   -   -   275,563   181,765 
Natural gas sales    -   -   4,984   2,815   -   -   4,984   2,815 
Natural gas liquids sales    -   -   8,686   4,191   -   -   8,686   4,191 
Overlift     14,723   -    -   -    -   -      14,723   -  
Less: royalties    (129,891)   (71,741)   (5,059)   (2,355)   -   -   (134,950)   (74,096) 

  

Petroleum and natural gas sales, net of royalties    142,170   101,345   26,836   13,330   -   -   169,006   114,675 
Finance revenue    -   16   -   -   9   90   9   106 
Other revenue    -   -   -   -   32   641   32   641 

  

  Total segmented revenue    142,170   101,361   26,836   13,330   41   731   169,047   115,422 
  

  Segmented expenses          
Production and operating    54,379   58,305   7,051   6,157   -   -   61,430   64,462 
Overlift     14,723   -    -   -    -   -      14,723   -  
Selling costs    3,921   2,111   -   -   -   -   3,921   2,111 
General and administrative    4,574   4,781   1,019   920   14,760   6,289   20,353   11,990 
Foreign exchange loss    -   -   -   -   47   24   47   24 
Finance costs    797   2,159   337   343   7   18   1,141   2,520 
Depletion, depreciation and amortization    17,120   22,927   7,905   7,320   409   802   25,434   31,049 
Asset retirement obligation accretion    -   -   207   259   -   -   207   259 
Loss (gain) on financial instruments    9,783   (6,621)   780   -   -   -   10,563   (6,621) 
Impairment (reversal) loss    (28,170)   69,434   (3,351)   4,061   -   -   (31,521)   73,495 
Income tax expense    22,411   13,530   -   -   -   -   22,411   13,530 

  

Segmented net earnings (loss)    42,632   (65,265)   12,888   (5,730)   (15,182)   (6,402)   40,338   (77,397) 
  

  Capital expenditures          
Exploration and development    14,561   5,256   12,222   2,067   -   -   26,783   7,323 
Corporate    -   -   -   -   39   175   39   175 

  

  Total capital expenditures    14,561   5,256   12,222   2,067   39   175   26,822   7,498 
  

The carrying amounts of reportable segment assets and liabilities are as follows:
 
   As at December 31, 2021   As at December 31, 2020 
  ($000s)   Egypt   Canada   Corporate   Total   Egypt   Canada   Corporate   Total 
  Assets                 

Cash     27,966     2,248   7,715     37,929   25,236    1,831   7,443   34,510  
Accounts receivable    7,335    4,352   530   12,217    6,594    2,821   581   9,996 
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets    2,089    584   -    2,673    -    584   -    584 
Property and equipment                 

Petroleum and natural gas assets    95,478    78,326   -    173,804    70,331    69,728   -    140,059 
Other assets    1,304    20   878   2,202    1,985    11   921   2,917 

Other    2,926    312   786   4,024    8,335    331   692   9,358 
Deferred taxes    6,246    -   -    6,246    3,723    -   -    3,723 

            

Total segmented assets    143,344    85,842   9,909   239,095    116,204    75,306      9,637   201,147 
            

  Liabilities                 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    18,193    4,117   3,802   26,112    14,342    2,040   3,794   20,176 
Share-based compensation liabilities   -     -     10,133      10,133   -     -     2,035   2,035 
Derivative commodity contracts    -    88    -    88    398     -   -    398 
Long-term debt    -    3,040   -    3,040    14,897    6,567    -    21,464 
Asset retirement obligation    -    14,102   -    14,102    -    13,042   -    13,042 
Lease obligation    452     89   259   800    1,466     302   246   2,014 
Deferred taxes    6,246    -   -    6,246    3,723    -   -    3,723 

            

Total segmented liabilities    24,891    21,436   14,194   60,521    34,826    21,951      6,075   62,852 
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25. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Changes in  non-cash  working capital consisted of the following:
 
    Years ended December 31 
  ($000s)   2021                      2020 
  Operating activities    

(Increase) decrease in current assets    
Accounts receivable    (2,220)   685 
Prepaids and other    (202)   886 
Product inventory 1    5,079   7,288 

(Decrease) increase  in current liabilities    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2    (5,941)   (7,523) 
Share-based compensation liabilities    3,415   (70) 

  

  Total changes in  non-cash  working capital    131   1,266 
  

  Investing activities    
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities    

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    7,601   (3,544) 
  

  Total changes in  non-cash  working capital    7,601   (3,544) 
  

  Financing activities    
(Increase) decrease in current liabilities    

Other liabilities    (365)   161 
  

  Total changes in  non-cash  working capital    (365)   161 
  

 

 1  The change in  non-cash  working capital associated with product inventory represents the change in operating costs capitalized as product inventory in the respective periods.
 

 2  Inclusive of changes in current portion of share-based compensation liabilities.

26. SUPPLEMENTAL EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION EXPENSE INFORMATION

TransGlobe’s Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss) is prepared primarily by nature of item, with the exception of employee compensation
expense which is included in both production and operating, and general and administrative (“G&A”) expense line items. The following table details the amount of total employee
compensation expense included in production and operating expense and G&A expense line items:
 
  ($000s)   2021                       2020 
  Production and operating    3,547    3,569 
  G&A    12,804    5,207 

    

  Total    16,351    8,776 
    

27. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In December of 2021, the Company announced that its agreement with EGPC to merge, amend and extend its three existing Eastern Desert concessions (the “Agreement”) had been
ratified into Egyptian Law. The effective date of the new Agreement will be February 01, 2020 (the “Effective Date”).

Subsequent to year-end, the Company remitted the initial modernization payment of  $15.0  million and signature bonus of $1.0 million as part of the conditions precedent to the official
signing of the Agreement, which occurred on January 19, 2022. In accordance with the Agreement, TransGlobe made another modernization payment to EGPC in the amount of
$10.0 million on February 1, 2022. As previously disclosed, the total modernization payment is $65.0 million and will be payable over six years from the Effective Date of the agreement;
$15.0 million due prior to signing and five further instalments of $10.0 million payable annually from February 01, 2022 – February 01, 2026.

It is expected that the Agreement will impact management’s assessment of impairment reversal and its CGU determination. This will be fully assessed and concluded upon in the first half
of 2022.

On March 16, 2022 the Company declared a dividend of $0.10 per common share, which will be paid in cash on May 12, 2022 to shareholders of record on April 29, 2022.



EXHIBIT 99.3
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Condensed Consolidated Interim Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(Unaudited - Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars, except per share amounts)

    Three Months Ended June 30   Six Months Ended June 30  
   Notes  2022   2021   2022   2021  
                    
 REVENUE                  
  Petroleum and natural gas sales, net of royalties 18   74,690    50,595    127,644    68,647  
  Finance revenue    3    3    3    6  
  Other revenue    1    33    1    33  
      74,694    50,631    127,648    68,686  
                    
 EXPENSES                  
  Production and operating 7,18   14,830    19,722    28,109    29,171  
  Selling costs    2,010    1,671    2,493    1,705  
  General and administrative    8,077    3,670    14,942    8,707  
  Foreign exchange loss    13    10    5    43  
  Finance costs 6   717    333    1,271    803  
  Depletion, depreciation and amortization 9   7,299    6,959    14,169    11,774  
  Asset retirement obligation accretion 10   86    45    159    111  
  Gain on concession merger 5   -    -    (7,953 )   -  
  Loss on financial instruments 4   148    4,894    1,554    9,409  
  Impairment reversal 9   -    -    (25,983 )   -  
      33,180    37,304    28,766    61,723  
                    
 Earnings before income taxes    41,514    13,327    98,882    6,963  
                    
 Income tax expense - current    9,381    5,605    17,939    10,265  
 NET EARNINGS (LOSS)    32,133    7,722    80,943    (3,302 )
                    
 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME                  
  Currency translation adjustments    (1,815 )   772    (1,083 )   1,166  
 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)    30,318    8,494    79,860    (2,136 )
                    
 Net earnings (loss) per share 16                 
  Basic    0.44    0.11    1.11    (0.05 )
  Diluted    0.44    0.11    1.09    (0.05 )

See accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
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Condensed Consolidated Interim Balance Sheets

(Unaudited - Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars)

    As at   As at  

   Notes  June 30, 2022   December 31, 2021  
            
 ASSETS  
 Current  
  Cash    61,175    37,929  
  Accounts receivable 4,5   74,790    12,217  
  Prepaids and other    5,328    4,024  
      141,293    54,170  
 Non-Current  
  Intangible exploration and evaluation assets 8   2,737    2,673  
  Property and equipment          
    Petroleum and natural gas assets 9   208,510    173,804  
    Other 9   2,296    2,202  
  Deferred taxes    -    6,246  
     354,836    239,095  
            
 LIABILITIES  
 Current  
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 13   42,707    26,112  
  Share-based compensation liabilities 15   8,286    6,174  
  Modernization payment liabilities 5   9,555    -  
  Derivative commodity contracts 4   858    88  
  Lease obligations 11   1,245    764  
      62,651    33,138  
 Non-Current  
  Long-term debt 12   3,102    3,040  
  Asset retirement obligations 10   11,335    14,102  
  Share-based compensation liabilities 15   1,892    3,959  
  Modernization payment liabilities 5   24,620    -  
  Lease obligations 11   1,005    36  
  Deferred taxes    -    6,246  
     104,605    60,521  
            
 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
  Share capital 14   153,118    153,021  
  Accumulated other comprehensive income    755    1,838  
  Contributed surplus 15   23,905    24,896  
  Retained earnings (deficit)    72,453    (1,181 )
     250,231    178,574  
     354,836    239,095

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 13)

See accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Signed by:

“Randy C. Neely” “Jennifer Kaufield”
  
Randy C. Neely Jennifer Kaufield
President & CEO Audit Committee Chair
Director Director
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Condensed Consolidated Interim Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(Unaudited - Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars)

    Six Months Ended June 30  
   Notes  2022   2021  
            
 Share Capital          
  Balance, beginning of period    153,021    152,805  
  Stock options exercised 14   (990 )   -  
  Transfer from contributed surplus on exercise of options 14   1,087    -  
  Balance, end of period    153,118    152,805  
            
 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income          
  Balance, beginning of period    1,838    1,900  
  Currency translation adjustment    (1,083 )   1,166  
  Balance, end of period    755    3,066  
            
 Contributed Surplus          
  Balance, beginning of period    24,896    25,109  
  Share-based compensation expense 15   96    194  
  Transfer to share capital on exercise of options 15   (1,087 )   -  
  Balance, end of period    23,905    25,303  
            
 Retained Earnings (Deficit)          
  Balance, beginning of period    (1,181 )   (41,519 )
  Net earnings (loss)    80,943    (3,302 )
  Dividends 17   (7,309 )   -  
  Balance, end of period    72,453    (44,821 )

See accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
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Condensed Consolidated Interim Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited - Expressed in thousands of US Dollars)

     Three Months Ended June 30   Six Months Ended June 30  
    Notes  2022   2021   2022   2021  
                     
 OPERATING                  
  Net earnings (loss)    32,133    7,722    80,943    (3,302 )
  Adjustments for:                  
   Depletion, depreciation and amortization 9   7,299    6,959    14,169    11,774  
   Asset retirement obligation accretion 10   86    45    159    111  
   Impairment reversal 9   -    -    (25,983 )   -  
   Share-based compensation 15   2,801    816    6,231    3,587  
   Finance costs 6   717    333    1,271    803  
   Unrealized (gain) loss on financial instruments 4   (569 )   1,248    787    4,218  
   Unrealized loss on foreign currency translation    19    8    92    12  
   Gain on concession merger 5   -    -    (7,953 )   -  
  Asset retirement obligations settled 10   (21 )   (31 )   (120 )   (22 )
  Changes in working capital 19   (295 )   6,732    (51,208 )   2,711  
 Net cash generated by operating activities    42,170    23,832    18,388    19,892  
                     
 INVESTING                  
  Additions to intangible exploration and evaluation assets 8   (40 )   (15 )   (64 )   (578 )
  Additions to petroleum and natural gas assets 9   (15,662 )   (3,557 )   (24,293 )   (5,887 )
  Additions to other assets 9   (34 )   (25 )   (228 )   (39 )
  Changes in working capital 19   5,874    522    5,904    2,347  
 Net cash used in investing activities    (9,862 )   (3,075 )   (18,681 )   (4,157 )
                     
 FINANCING                  
  Issue of common shares 14   (325 )   -    (989 )   -  
  Interest paid 6   (42 )   (291 )   (78 )   (584 )
  Increase in long-term debt 12   55    146    110    225  
  Payments on lease obligations 11   (508 )   (479 )   (997 )   (1,071 )
  Repayments of long-term debt 12   -    (5,000 )   -    (5,000 )
  Dividends paid 17   (7,309 )   -    (7,309 )   -  
  Increase in modernization payment liabilities 5   -    -    59,027    -  
  Payments on modernization payment liabilities 5   -    -    (26,000 )   -  
  Changes in working capital 19   (49 )   (8 )   (17 )   (9 )
 Net cash (used in) generated by financing activities    (8,178 )   (5,632 )   23,747    (6,439 )
                     
 Currency translation differences relating to cash    (200 )   (155 )   (208 )   (167 )
 NET INCREASE IN CASH    23,930    14,970    23,246    9,129  
 CASH, BEGINNING OF PERIOD    37,245    28,669    37,929    34,510  
 CASH, END OF PERIOD    61,175    43,639    61,175    43,639

See accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 and for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2022  and 2021

(Unaudited - All amounts expressed in U.S. Dollars, except as otherwise noted)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

TransGlobe Energy Corporation ("TransGlobe" or the "Company") and its subsidiaries are engaged in oil and natural gas exploration, development and production, and the acquisition of oil and natural gas
properties. The Company's shares are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”), the London Stock Exchange's Alternative Investment Market ("AIM") and the Capital Market of the NASDAQ Stock
Market (“NASDAQ”). TransGlobe is incorporated in Alberta, Canada and the address of its principal place of business is Suite 900, 444 – 5th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2P 2T8.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34, Interim Financial Reporting, using accounting policies consistent
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The accounting policies used in the preparation of these Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements were the same as those used in the preparation of the most recent audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021.

These Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on August 9, 2022.

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are presented and expressed in United States dollars (“US$”), unless otherwise noted. All references to $ are to United States dollars and
references to C$ are to Canadian dollars.

These Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements do not contain all the disclosures required for full annual financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the December 31, 2021
audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

3. CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Timely preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as issued by the IASB requires that management make estimates and assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the Condensed Consolidated
Interim Financial Statements. Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts as future events occur.

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Fair values of financial instruments

The Company has classified its cash and derivative commodity contracts as fair value through profit or loss. All are measured at fair value with subsequent changes recognized through earnings (loss).
Accounts receivable are classified as assets at amortized cost; accounts payable and accrued liabilities, lease obligations, share-based compensation liabilities, long-term debt and modernization payment
liabilities are classified as liabilities at amortized cost, all of which are measured initially at fair value, and subsequently at amortized cost. Transaction costs attributable to financial instruments carried at
amortized cost are included in the initial measurement of the financial instrument and are subsequently amortized using the effective interest rate method.

Carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

 June 30, 2022   December 31, 2021  

Classification ($000s)  
Carrying

Value   
Fair

Value   
Carrying

Value   
Fair

Value  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   61,175    61,175    37,929    37,929  
Financial assets at amortized cost   74,790    74,790    12,217    12,217  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss   858    858    88    88  
Financial liabilities at amortized cost   92,412    92,412    29,952    29,952

Assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2022 that are measured at fair value are classified into levels reflecting the method used to make the measurements. Fair values of assets and liabilities included in Level 1
are determined by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities in Level 2 include valuations using inputs other than quoted prices for which all
significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement.

The Company’s cash and derivative commodity contracts are assessed on the fair value hierarchy described above. TransGlobe’s cash is classified as Level 1. Derivative commodity contracts are classified
as Level 2. Assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement
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requires judgment and may affect the placement within the fair value hierarchy level. There were no transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy in the period.

Derivative commodity contracts

The nature of TransGlobe’s operations exposes it to fluctuations in commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. TransGlobe monitors and, when appropriate, uses derivative
financial instruments to manage its exposure to these fluctuations. All current derivatives of this nature entered into by TransGlobe are related to future natural gas production. TransGlobe has elected not to
designate any of its derivative financial instruments as accounting hedges and thus accounts for changes in fair value in net earnings (loss) at each reporting period. TransGlobe has not obtained collateral or
other security to support its financial derivatives as management reviews the creditworthiness of its counterparties prior to entering into derivative contracts. The derivative financial instruments are initiated
within the guidelines of the Company's corporate hedging policy. This includes linking all derivatives to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted
transactions.

In accordance with the terms of its revolving Canadian reserves-based lending facility with ATB, the Company is required to enter into hedging arrangements based on its debt utilization. If utilization is
below 50%, TransGlobe is required to hedge 25% of its annual forecasted average daily Canadian production of oil and natural gas volumes (net of royalties); utilization of between 50%-69% requires a
hedge of 50%; utilization of 70% and above requires a hedge of 60%.

The following table summarizes TransGlobe’s outstanding derivative commodity contract positions as at June 30, 2022, the fair values of which have been presented on the Condensed Consolidated Interim
Balance Sheet:

Financial AECO natural gas contracts                 

Period Hedged   Contract  
Remaining

Volume (GJ)   
Daily

Volume (GJ)   
Bought Put

C$/GJ   
Sold Call

C$/GJ  
Jul 2022 - Sep 2022   Collar   358,800    3,900    2.50    3.10  
Oct 2022 - Dec 2022   Collar   358,800    3,900    2.50    4.00

The gains and losses on financial instruments for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 are comprised as follows:

 Three Months Ended June 30   
Six Months Ended

June 30  
($000s)  2022   2021   2022   2021  
Realized derivative loss on derivative commodity contracts during the period   717    3,646    767    5,191  
Unrealized derivative (gain) loss on commodity contracts outstanding at period end   (569 )   1,248    787    4,218  
Loss on financial instruments   148    4,894    1,554    9,409

Overview of Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks that arise as a result of its exploration, development, production and financing activities:

• Credit risk
• Market risk
• Liquidity risk

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee oversee management’s establishment and execution of the Company’s risk management framework. Management has implemented and monitors compliance
with risk management policies. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to market conditions and the Company’s activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to fulfill their contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk primarily relates to cash and
accounts receivable, the majority of which are in respect of oil and natural gas operations. The Company generally extends unsecured credit to these parties and therefore the collection of these amounts may
be affected by changes in economic or other conditions. The Company has not experienced any material credit losses in its cash investments or in the collection of accounts receivable to date.

TransGlobe's accounts receivable related to the Canadian operations are with customers and joint interest partners in the petroleum and natural gas industry, and are subject to normal industry credit risks.
Receivables from petroleum and natural gas marketers are normally collected in due course. The Company currently sells its production to several purchasers under standard industry sale and payment terms.
Purchasers of TransGlobe's natural gas, crude oil and natural gas liquids are subject to a periodic internal credit review to minimize the risk of non-payment. The Company has continued to closely monitor
and reassess the creditworthiness of its counterparties, including financial institutions.

Trade and other receivables are analyzed in the table below.
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($000s) June 30, 2022   December 31, 2021  
Neither impaired nor past due  16,289    4,022  
Not impaired and past due in the following period:        

Within 30 days  109    6,067  
31-60 days  56,466    851  
61-90 days  1,212    608  
Over 90 days  714    669  

Accounts receivable  74,790    12,217

During the three months ended June 30, 2022, the Company sold an Egypt crude oil cargo of 451.0 Mbbls for proceeds of $46.3 million, which were collected in May and June. Depending on the
Company's assessment of the credit of crude purchasers, they may be required to post irrevocable letters of credit to support the sales prior to the cargo liftings. During the second quarter of 2022 the
Company sold 104.0 Mbbls of inventoried entitlement crude oil to EGPC for proceeds of $11.8 million.

As at June 30, 2022, $67.5 million of current receivables represent the effective date adjustment owed to the Company related to the Merged Concession (as defined herein). See Note 5 for additional
details.

All accounts receivable are in good standing and collection is not considered to be at risk.

Prior credit losses in the collection of accounts receivable by TransGlobe have been negligible and the Company does not anticipate any significant future credit losses based on forward looking
information. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded for expected credit losses (“ECL”).
 

Market risk

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price movements and the associated impact on future performance of the business. The market price movements that the Company is
exposed to include commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, all of which could adversely affect the value of the Company’s financial assets, liabilities and financial results.

Commodity price risk

The Company’s operational results and financial condition are partially dependent on the commodity prices received for its production of oil, natural gas and NGLs. The Company is exposed to commodity
price risk on its derivative assets and liabilities which are used as part of the Company's risk management program to mitigate the effects of changes in commodity prices on future cash flows. While
transactions of this nature relate to forecasted future petroleum and natural gas production, TransGlobe does not designate these derivative assets and liabilities as accounting hedges. As such, changes in
commodity prices impact the fair value of derivative instruments and the corresponding gains or losses on derivative instruments. The estimated fair value of unrealized commodity contracts is reported on
the Consolidated Interim Balance Sheets, with any change in the unrealized positions recorded to net earnings (loss). The Company assesses these instruments on the fair value hierarchy and has classified
the determination of fair value of these instruments as Level 2, as the fair values of these transactions are based on an approximation of the amounts that would have been received from counterparties to
settle the transactions outstanding as at the date of the Consolidated Interim Balance Sheets with reference to forward prices and market values provided by independent sources. The actual amounts realized
may differ from these estimates.

Foreign currency exchange risk

As the Company’s business is conducted primarily in U.S. dollars and its financial instruments are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars, the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk relates
primarily to certain cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, long-term debt, lease obligations and accounts payable and accrued liabilities denominated in Canadian dollars. When assessing the
potential impact of foreign currency exchange risk, the Company believes that 10% volatility is a reasonable measure. The Company estimates that a 10% increase in the value of the Canadian dollar against
the U.S. dollar would decrease net earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2022 by approximately $0.9 million, compared to a $0.7 million decrease to net earnings in the same period in 2021.
Conversely, a 10% decrease in the value of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar would increase net earnings by approximately $0.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022 compared to a
$0.7 million increase to net earnings in the same period of 2021. The Company does not utilize derivative instruments to manage this risk.

The Company is also exposed to foreign currency exchange risk on cash balances denominated in Egyptian pounds. Some collections of accounts receivable from the Egyptian Government are received in
Egyptian pounds, and while the Company is generally able to spend the Egyptian pounds received on accounts payable denominated in Egyptian pounds, there remains foreign currency exchange risk
exposure on Egyptian pound cash balances. Using month-end cash balances converted at month-end foreign exchange rates, the average Egyptian pound cash balance at June 30, 2022 was $0.8 million in
equivalent U.S. dollars (June 30, 2021 - $0.9 million). The Company estimates that a 10% increase in the value of the Egyptian pound against the U.S. dollar would decrease net earnings for the three
months ended June 30, 2022 by approximately $0.1 million, compared to a $0.1 million decrease to net earnings in the same period in 2021. Conversely, a 10% decrease in the value of the Egyptian pound
against the U.S. dollar would increase net earnings by $0.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022, compared to a $0.1 million increase to net earnings in the same period of 2021. The Company
does not currently utilize derivative instruments to manage foreign currency exchange risk.

The Company maintains nominal balances of British Pounds Sterling to pay in-country costs incurred in operating its London office. Foreign exchange risk on these funds is not considered material.
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Interest rate risk

Fluctuations in interest rates could result in a significant change in the amount the Company pays to service variable interest debt. No derivative contracts were entered into during Q2-2022 to mitigate
interest rate risk. When assessing interest rate risk applicable to the Company’s variable interest debt, the Company believes 1% volatility is a reasonable measure. Interest rates increasing or decreasing by
1% would have a negligible impact on the Company’s net earnings, for the three months ended June 30, 2022. Comparatively, the effect of interest rates increasing by 1% would decrease net earnings for
the three months ended June 30, 2021 by $0.1 million and, conversely, the effect of interest rates decreasing by 1% would increase net earnings for the same period by $0.1 million.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. Liquidity describes a company’s ability to access cash. Companies operating in the upstream
oil and gas industry require sufficient cash in order to fund capital programs necessary to maintain and increase production and proved reserves, to acquire strategic oil and gas assets and to repay debt.

The Company actively maintains credit facilities to ensure it has sufficient available funds to meet current and foreseeable financial requirements at a reasonable cost. Refer to Note 13 herein for details on
the Company’s contractual maturities of financial liabilities at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

As at June 30, 2022, the Company had a revolving Canadian reserves-based lending facility with ATB totaling $17.4 million (C$22.5 million), of which $3.1 million (C$4.0 million) was drawn and
outstanding. During the six months ended June 30, 2022, the Company had drawings of $0.1 million (C$0.1 million) on this facility (See Note 12).

The Company actively monitors its liquidity to ensure that its cash flows, credit facilities and working capital are adequate to support these financial liabilities, as well as the Company’s capital programs.

To date, the Company has experienced no difficulties with transferring funds abroad.

5. MERGED CONCESSION AGREEMENT

On January 19, 2022, the agreement with EGPC to merge, amend and extend the Company’s three existing Eastern Desert concessions (the “Merged Concession” or “Agreement”) was executed. The
Merged Concession includes improved cost recovery and production sharing terms scaled to oil prices with a new 15-year development term and a 5-year extension option.

TransGlobe remitted the initial modernization payment of $15.0 million and signature bonus of $1.0 million as part of the conditions precedent to the official signing of the Merged Concession on January
19, 2022. In accordance with the Agreement, the Company made another modernization payment to EGPC in the amount of $10.0 million on February 1, 2022. As previously disclosed, the modernization
payments under the Agreement total $65.0 million and are payable over six years from February 1, 2020 (the “Effective Date”). The Company estimated the net present value of the modernization payment
liabilities to be $34.2 million as at June 30, 2022 using a discount rate of 8%. The Company recorded a corresponding increase in carrying amount of its Eastern Desert PNG assets for the modernization
payments under the Merged Concession.

Upon execution of the Merged Concession, there was an effective date adjustment owed to the Company for the difference between historic and Merged Concession agreement commercial terms applied
against Eastern Desert production from the effective date of February 1, 2020. The quantum of the effective date adjustment is currently being finalized with EGPC and could result in a range of outcomes
based on the final price per barrel negotiated. TransGlobe has recognized a receivable of $67.5 million at June 30, 2022, which represents the amount expected to be received from EGPC based on historical
realized prices. The effective date adjustment was recognized against the Eastern Desert PNG assets noted above, with the incremental value in excess of PNG additions ($8.0 million) being recognized as a
gain on concession merger in the Statement of Earnings (Loss).

Pursuant to the Merged Concession in Egypt, the Company has a minimum financial commitment of $50.0 million per each five-year period of the primary development term, for a total of $150 million
commencing on the Effective Date.  All investments which exceed the five-year minimum $50 million threshold will carry forward to offset against subsequent five-year commitments. Since February 1,
2020, TransGlobe has incurred $30.2 million in capital expenditures in the Eastern Desert.
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6. FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs recognized in net earnings were as follows:

 Three Months Ended June 30   Six Months Ended June 30  

($000s)  2022   2021   2022   2021  
Interest on long-term debt   -    202    -    431  
Interest on borrowing base facility   42    80    78    156  
Amortization of deferred financing costs   -    -    -    103  
Interest on modernization payment liabilities   651    -    1,148    -  
Interest on lease obligations   24    51    45    113  
Finance costs   717    333    1,271    803  
Interest paid   42    291    78    584

7. PRODUCT INVENTORY

Product inventory consists of the Company's entitlement crude oil barrels in Egypt, which are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Costs include operating expenses and depletion associated
with crude oil entitlement barrels and are determined on a concession by concession basis. These amounts are initially capitalized and expensed when sold.

As at June 30, 2022, the Company held nil crude oil inventory (December 31, 2021 – nil).

8. INTANGIBLE EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

The following table reconciles the changes in TransGlobe's exploration and evaluation assets:

($000s)     
Balance at December 31, 2021   2,673  

Additions to exploration and evaluation assets   64  
Balance at June 30, 2022   2,737

The ending balance of intangible exploration and evaluation assets as at June 30, 2022 includes $0.6 million in Canada (December 31, 2021 - $0.6 million) and $2.2 million in South Ghazalat (December 31,
2021 - $2.1 million).
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9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following table reconciles the changes in TransGlobe's property and equipment assets:

($000s)  PNG Assets   Other Assets   Total  
Cost             
Balance at December 31, 2021   745,940    20,384    766,324  

Increase in right-of-use assets   1,972    430    2,402  
Additions   24,293    228    24,521  
Merged Concession agreement (Note 5)   59,526    -    59,526  
Merged Concession effective date adjustment (Note 5)   (59,526 )   -    (59,526 )
Change in estimate for asset retirement obligations (Note 10)   (2,633 )   -    (2,633 )

Balance at June 30, 2022   769,572    21,042    790,614  
             
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment losses  
Balance at December 31, 2021   575,047    18,182    593,229  

Depletion, depreciation and amortization for the period1   13,606    564    14,170  
Impairment reversal   (25,983 )   -    (25,983 )

Balance at June 30, 2022   562,670    18,746    581,416  
             
Foreign Exchange             
Balance at December 31, 2021   2,911    -    2,911  

Currency translation adjustments   (1,303 )   -    (1,303 )
Balance at June 30, 2022   1,608    -    1,608  
             
Net book value             
At December 31, 2021   173,804    2,202    176,006  
At June 30, 2022   208,510    2,296    210,806

 1 Depletion, depreciation and amortization for the period includes amounts capitalized to product inventory for barrels produced but not sold in the period.

 
TransGlobe performed a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) assessment upon execution of the Merged Concession. It was determined that the Company’s three Eastern Desert CGUs (West Gharib, West Bakr
and North West Gharib) no longer constituted individual CGUs. Under the Merged Concession, the Eastern Desert is now the lowest level at which there are identifiable cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other groups of assets or properties.

At March 31, 2022 indicators of impairment reversal were present on the Company’s PNG assets in the Eastern Desert CGU in Egypt as a result of the improved commercial terms of the Merged Concession
and a further increase and stabilization of forecasted commodity prices in Q1-2022. The Company performed impairment reversal calculations at March 31, 2022 on the Eastern Desert CGU based on fair
value less costs to sell (fair value hierarchy Level 3), using estimated after-tax cash discounted cash flows on proved plus probable reserves.

The Company used a discount rate of 15% and the following commodity price estimates:

   Brent Crude Oil1  
Year  $/Bbl  
2022 (Q2-Q4)   97.50  
2023   87.07  
2024   78.25  
2025   77.34  
2026   78.89  
2027   80.46  
2028   82.07  
2029   83.72  
2030   85.39  
2031   87.10  
Thereafter2  +2.0%/yr

 1 Average of the forecasts ("IQRE Average Forecast") of GLJ Ltd., McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd. and Sproule Associates Limited each dated April 1, 2022. 
 2 Percentage change represents the increase in each year after 2031 to the end of the reserves life.

Based on the results of the impairment reversal calculations completed, recoverable amounts were determined to be greater than the carrying values of the CGU tested resulting in $26.0 million of impairment
reversal being recorded. The impairment reversal was limited to total accumulated historical impairments less subsequent depletion. No indicators of impairment were identified as at June 30, 2022.
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The following table discloses the carrying amounts and depreciation charges for right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset as at and for the three months ended June 30, 2022:

($000s)  PNG Assets   Other Assets   Total  
Net book value at December 31, 2021   376    246    622  

Increase in right-of-use assets   1,972    430    2,402  
Depreciation for the year   (457 )   (315 )   (772 )

Net book value at June 30, 2022   1,891    361    2,252

10. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The following table reconciles the change in TransGlobe's asset retirement obligations:

($000s)    
Balance at December 31, 2021  14,102  

Changes in estimates for asset retirement obligations and additional obligations recognized  (2,633 )
Obligations settled  (120 )
Asset retirement obligation accretion  159  
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates  (173 )

Balance at June 30, 2022  11,335

As at June 30, 2022, the entire asset retirement obligation balance relates to the Company's Canadian operations. TransGlobe has estimated the net present value of its asset retirement obligations to be $11.3
million as at June 30, 2022 (December 31, 2021 - $14.1 million). These payments are expected to be made between 2022 and 2066. TransGlobe calculated the present value of the obligations using discount
rates between 3.10% and 3.23% (December 31, 2021 – rates between 0.95% and 1.68%) to reflect the market assessment of the time value of money as well as risks specific to the liabilities that have not
been included in the cash flow estimates. The inflation rate used in determining the cash flow estimate was 2.00% per annum (December 31, 2021 – 2.00%).

As at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 there are no asset retirement obligations associated with the Egypt production sharing concessions.

11. LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The following table reconciles TransGlobe's lease obligations:

  ($000s)  As at June 30, 2022  As at December 31, 2021  
Current portion of lease obligations   1,245   764  
Non-current portion of lease obligations   1,005   36  
Total lease obligations   2,250   800

During the six months ended June 30, 2022, the Company incurred $0.1 million (June 30, 2021 - $0.1 million) on interest expense and paid a total cash outflow of $1.0 million (June 30, 2021 - $1.0 million)
relating to lease obligations.

12. LONG-TERM DEBT

As at June 30, 2022, interest-bearing debt was comprised as follows:

June 30, 2022   December 31, 2021  
Reserves-based lending facility - amount drawn  3,102    3,040

As at June 30, 2022, the Company had in place a revolving Canadian reserves-based lending facility with ATB totaling $17.4 million (C$22.5 million), of which $3.1 million (C$4.0 million) was drawn
(December 31, 2021 - $3.0 million/C$3.9 million). The facility bears interest at a rate of either ATB Prime or CDOR (Canadian Dollar Offered Rate) plus applicable margins that vary from 2.25% to 4.25%
(December 31, 2021: 2.25% to 4.25%) depending on the Company’s net debt to trailing cash flow ratio. During the six months ended June 30, 2022, the Company drew $0.1 million (C$0.1 million) on the
revolving facility.

TransGlobe received a three-month extension on the annual ATB facility renewal to August 31, 2022.
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The following table reconciles the changes in TransGlobe's long-term debt:

($000s)      
Balance at December 31, 2021   3,040   

Draws on revolving credit facility   110   
Effects of movements in foreign exchange rates   (48 )  

Balance at June 30, 2022   3,102   

During the six months ended June 30, 2022, the Company paid $0.1 million (June 30, 2021 - $0.6 million) in interest on its long-term debt.

The Company's interest-bearing loans and borrowings are measured at amortized cost. The reserves-based lending facility is subject to certain covenants. The Company was in compliance with its covenants
as at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

The estimated future debt payments on long-term debt as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

($000s)  Reserves Based Lending Facility  
2023   3,102

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As part of its normal business, the Company entered into arrangements and incurred obligations that will impact the Company’s future operations and liquidity. The principal commitments of the Company
are as follows:

     Payment Due by Period 1  

($000s)  

Recognized
in Financial
Statements  

Contractual
Cash Flows   

Less than
1 year   

1-3
years   

4-5
years   

More
than

5 years  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  Yes-Liability   42,707    42,707    -    -    -  
Long-term debt  Yes-Liability   3,102    -    3,102    -    -  
Lease obligations  Yes-Liability   2,250    1,245    1,005    -    -  
Share-based compensation liabilities  Yes-Liability   10,178    8,286    1,892    -    -  
Modernization payment liabilities2  Yes-Liability   40,000    10,000    30,000    -    -  
Minimum financial commitment3  No   119,768    -    19,768    -    100,000  
Derivative commodity contracts  Yes-Liability   858    858    -    -    -  
Equipment and facility leases4  No   501    501    -    -    -  
Total     219,364    63,597    55,767    -    100,000

 1 Payments denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at June 30, 2022 exchange rates. 
 2 Four annual equalization payments of $10.0 million owing to EGPC beginning on February 1, 2023 until February 1, 2026.

3    Minimum work commitments include contracts awarded for capital projects and those commitments related to development and drilling obligations (see Note 5).

 4 Equipment lease includes one workover rig.

In the normal course of its operations, the Company may be subject to litigation and claims. Although it is not possible to estimate the extent of potential costs, if any, management believes that the ultimate
resolution of such contingencies would not have a material adverse impact on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of the Company.

Pursuant to the Merged Concession in Egypt, the Company had a minimum financial commitment of $50.0 million per each five-year period of the primary development term, commencing on the February
1, 2020 effective date.  All investments which exceed the five-year minimum $50 million threshold will carry forward to offset against subsequent five-year commitments

The Company is not aware of any material provisions or other contingent liabilities as at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

14. SHARE CAPITAL

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares with no par value. Shares in issue as at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 are outlined below:

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2022   Year Ended December 31, 2021  
(000s)  Shares   Amount ($)   Shares   Amount ($)  
Balance, beginning of year   72,775    153,021    72,543    152,805  

Stock options exercised   534    (990 )   232    (340 )
Contributed surplus re-class on exercise   -    1,087    -    556  

Balance, end of year   73,309    153,118    72,775    153,021
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15. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Stock options

The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding and exercisable at the dates indicated:

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2022   Year Ended December 31, 2021  

(000s)  Number of Options   
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price ($C)   Number of Options   
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price ($C)  
Options outstanding, beginning of period   3,083    2.10    4,589    2.16  

Granted   -    -    402    2.16  
Exercised   (1,816 )   2.25    (906 )   2.34  
Expired   -    -    (1,002 )   2.19  

Options outstanding, end of period   1,267    1.70    3,083    2.10  
Options exercisable, end of period   726    1.88    1,810    2.35

Compensation expense of $0.8 million was recorded during the six months ended June 30, 2022 (June 30, 2021 - $0.2 million) in general and administrative expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Interim
Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss) and Condensed Consolidated Interim Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity in respect of stock options. The fair value of all
common stock options granted is estimated on the date of grant using the lattice-based trinomial option pricing model.

All options granted vest annually over a three-year period and expire five years after the grant date. During the six months ended June 30, 2022, employees exercised 1.8 million stock options valued at
C$4.3 million (June 30, 2021 – nil). As at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the entire balance in contributed surplus was related to previously recognized share-based compensation expense on equity-
settled stock options.

Restricted share unit ("RSU"), performance share unit ("PSU") and deferred share unit ("DSU") plans

The number of RSUs, PSUs and DSUs outstanding as at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

(000s)  RSUs   PSUs   DSUs  
Units outstanding, December 31, 2021   823    2,282    932  

Granted   278    322    -  
Exercised/Expired   (387 )   (495 )   (320 )
Forfeited   -    (9 )   -  
Reinvested   22    52    18  

Units outstanding, June 30, 2022   736    2,152    630

During the six months ended June 30, 2022, compensation expense of $5.5 million (June 30, 2021 - $3.4 million) was recorded in general and administrative expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Interim
Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss) in respect of the revaluation of outstanding share units granted under the three plans described above.

16. PER SHARE AMOUNTS

The basic weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 was 73,241,193 and 73,009,300 (three and six months ended June 30, 2021 -
72,542,071). The diluted weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 was 73,517,053 (June 30, 2021 – 72,921,693) and 74,337,158 (June 30,
2021 – 72,953,513), respectively. These outstanding share amounts were used to calculate net earnings (loss) per share in the respective periods.

In determining diluted net earnings per share, the Company assumes that the proceeds received from the exercise of “in-the-money” stock options are used to repurchase common shares at the average
market price. In calculating the weighted-average number of diluted common shares outstanding for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, no stock options were excluded
from the calculation as the exercise price of the options was not greater than the average common share market price in the period.

17. DIVIDENDS

On March 16, 2022 the Company declared a dividend of $0.10 per share, which was paid on May 12, 2022 to shareholders of record on April 29, 2022. The ex-dividend date was April 28, 2022.
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18. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021: the Arab Republic of Egypt and Canada. The Company, through its operating segments, is engaged
primarily in oil exploration, development and production and the acquisition of oil and gas properties. In presenting information on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based on the
geographical location of assets which is also consistent with the location of the segment customers. Segmented assets are also based on the geographical location of the assets. There are no inter-segment
sales. The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Company’s accounting policies.

 Three Months Ended June 30  
  2022   2021   2022   2021   2022   2021   2022   2021  
($000s)  Egypt   Canada   Corporate   Total  
Revenue                                 

Oil sales   99,689    77,831    5,533    3,942    -    -    105,222    81,773  
Natural gas sales   -    -    1,685    1,137    -    -    1,685    1,137  
Natural gas liquids sales   -    -    2,520    2,108    -    -    2,520    2,108  
Less: royalties   (33,267 )   (32,843 )   (1,470 )   (1,580 )   -    -    (34,737 )   (34,423 )
Petroleum and natural gas sales, net of royalties   66,422    44,988    8,268    5,607    -    -    74,690    50,595  
Finance revenue   -    -    -    -    3    3    3    3  
Other revenue   -    -    -    -    1    33    1    33  

Total segmented revenue   66,422    44,988    8,268    5,607    4    36    74,694    50,631  
                                 

Segmented expenses                                 
Production and operating   12,907    17,919    1,923    1,803    -    -    14,830    19,722  
Selling costs   2,010    1,671    -    -    -    -    2,010    1,671  
General and administrative   1,494    1,272    228    332    6,355    2,066    8,077    3,670  
Foreign exchange loss   -    -    -    -    13    10    13    10  
Finance costs   673    246    42    85    2    2    717    333  
Depletion, depreciation and amortization   5,730    4,796    1,492    2,076    77    87    7,299    6,959  
Asset retirement obligation accretion   -    -    86    45    -    -    86    45  
Loss on financial instruments   -    4,292    148    602    -    -    148    4,894  
Income tax expense   9,381    5,605    -    -    -    -    9,381    5,605  

Segmented net earnings (loss)   34,227    9,187    4,349    664    (6,443 )   (2,129 )   32,133    7,722  
                                 

Capital expenditures                                 
Exploration and development   5,713    2,585    10,023    1,012    -    -    15,736    3,597  
Corporate   -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -  

Total capital expenditures   5,713    2,585    10,023    1,012    -    -    15,736    3,597
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 Six Months Ended June 30  
  2022   2021   2022   2021   2022   2021   2022   2021  
($000s)  Egypt   Canada   Corporate   Total  
Revenue                                 

Oil sales   170,153    114,805    12,123    6,615    -    -    182,276    121,420  
Natural gas sales   -    -    3,255    2,079    -    -    3,255    2,079  
Natural gas liquids sales   -    -    5,406    3,796    -    -    5,406    3,796  
Less: royalties   (60,338 )   (56,327 )   (2,955 )   (2,321 )   -    -    (63,293 )   (58,648 )
Petroleum and natural gas sales, net of royalties   109,815    58,478    17,829    10,169    -    -    127,644    68,647  
Finance revenue   -    -    -    -    3    6    3    6  
Other revenue   -    -    -    -    1    33    1    33  

Total segmented revenue   109,815    58,478    17,829    10,169    4    39    127,648    68,686  
                                 

Segmented expenses                                 
Production and operating   24,194    25,847    3,915    3,324    -    -    28,109    29,171  
Selling costs   2,493    1,705    -    -    -    -    2,493    1,705  
General and administrative   2,829    2,506    492    555    11,621    5,646    14,942    8,707  
Foreign exchange loss   -    -    -    -    5    43    5    43  
Finance costs   1,189    632    79    167    3    4    1,271    803  
Depletion, depreciation and amortization   10,453    7,803    3,559    3,730    157    241    14,169    11,774  
Asset retirement obligation accretion   -    -    159    111    -    -    159    111  
Gain on concession merger   (7,953 )   -    -    -    -    -    (7,953 )   -  
Loss on financial instruments   -    8,969    1,554    440    -    -    1,554    9,409  
Impairment reversal   (25,983 )   -    -    -    -    -    (25,983 )   -  
Income tax expense   17,939    10,265    -    -    -    -    17,939    10,265  

Segmented net earnings (loss)   84,654    751    8,071    1,842    (11,782 )   (5,895 )   80,943    (3,302 )
                                 

Capital expenditures                                 
Exploration and development   11,895    3,528    12,690    2,966    -    -    24,585    6,494  
Corporate   -    -    -    -    -    10    -    10  

Total capital expenditures   11,895    3,528    12,690    2,966    -    10    24,585    6,504

The carrying amounts of reportable segment assets and liabilities are as follows:

 As at June 30, 2022   As at December 31, 2021  
($000s)  Egypt   Canada   Corporate   Total   Egypt   Canada   Corporate   Total  
Assets                                 

Cash   53,494    4,275    3,406    61,175    27,966    2,248    7,715    37,929  
Accounts receivable   69,260    5,005    525    74,790    7,335    4,352    530    12,217  
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets   2,153    584    -    2,737    2,089    584    -    2,673  
Property and equipment                                 

Petroleum and natural gas assets   124,984    83,526    -    208,510    95,478    78,326    -    173,804  
Other assets   1,551    15    730    2,296    1,304    20    878    2,202  

Prepaids and other   4,243    416    669    5,328    2,926    312    786    4,024  
Deferred taxes   -    -    -    -    6,246    -    -    6,246  
Total segmented assets   255,685    93,821    5,330    354,836    143,344    85,842    9,909    239,095  
                                 

Liabilities                                 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   26,316    10,924    5,467    42,707    18,193    4,117    3,802    26,112  
Share-based compensation liabilities   -    -    10,178    10,178    -    -    10,133    10,133  
Modernization payment liabilities   34,175    -    -    34,175    -    -    -    -  
Derivative commodity contracts   -    858    -    858    -    88    -    88  
Long-term debt   -    3,102    -    3,102    -    3,040    -    3,040  
Asset retirement obligation   -    11,335    -    11,335    -    14,102    -    14,102  
Lease obligation   2,102    7    141    2,250    452    89    259    800  
Deferred taxes   -    -    -    -    6,246    -    -    6,246  
Total segmented liabilities   62,593    26,226    15,786    104,605    24,891    21,436    14,194    60,521
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19. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Changes in non-cash working capital consisted of the following:

 Three Months Ended June 30   Six Months Ended June 30  

($000s)  2022   2021   2022   2021  
Operating activities                 

(Increase) decrease in current assets                 
Accounts receivable   (116 )   (4,432 )   (54,622 )   (3,645 )
Prepaids and other   (476 )   316    (1,190 )   799  
Product inventory1   489    5,507    -    1,898  

(Decrease) Increase in current liabilities                 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   4,469    5,105    6,671    3,344  
Share-based compensation liabilities   (4,661 )   236    (2,067 )   315  

Total changes in non-cash working capital   (295 )   6,732    (51,208 )   2,711  
                 
Investing activities                 

Increase in current liabilities                 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   5,874    522    5,904    2,347  

Total changes in non-cash working capital   5,874    522    5,904    2,347  
                 
Financing activities                 

Iincrease in current liabilities                 
Other liabilities   (49 )   (8 )   (17 )   (9 )

Total changes in non-cash working capital   (49 )   (8 )   (17 )   (9 )
 1 The change in non-cash working capital associated with product inventory represents the change in operating costs capitalized as product inventory in the respective periods.

 

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 13, 2022 the Company sold its Viking assets in the Harmattan area for C$11.6 million.

On July 14, 2022 TransGlobe and VAALCO Energy, Inc. announced that they have entered into a definitive arrangement agreement (the "Arrangement Agreement") pursuant to which VAALCO will
acquire all of the outstanding common shares of TransGlobe in a stock-for-stock strategic business combination transaction (the "Transaction"). Under the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, VAALCO
will acquire each TransGlobe share for 0.6727 of a VAALCO share of common stock.
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